
 

 

     REGULAR MEETING of the BOARD OF MANAGERS 

Thursday March 6, 2025 – 8:00 a.m. 
RRWD OFFICE 714 6th Street SW, ROSEAU MINNESOTA  

 
Agenda 

❖ CALL TO ORDER:    

■ Pledge of Allegiance 

■ Approve agenda: ___________________________ 

❖ CONSENT AGENDA: ____________________________________________________________ 

■ February 6, 2025 regular board meeting minutes 
■ Treasurer’s report  
■ Permits 2025-01 (Duane Frislie) & 2025-02 (Todd Peterson, City of Roseau) 
■ Review and approve manager and employee expense vouchers 

❖ OLD BUSINESS: 

■ Hay Creek open house & CAC meeting review 

■ GMRPTC grant application: River Trail sites 

 

❖ NEW BUSINESS:   

 

❖ PROJECTS: 

■ Big Swamp North (Badger Creek) update:  _____________________________________ 

■ Roseau Lake: ____________________________________________________________ 

● Phases 3 & 4 bid discussion 

● HDR Construction Services contract 

■ Whitney Lake: Soil boring quotes ____________________________________________ 

❖ REPORTS: 

■ RRWMB: ________________________________________________________________ 

■ Specialist: ________________________________________________________________ 

■ Administrator: _____________________________________________________________ 

❖ Closed session to discuss potential litigation: 

❖ OTHER ITEMS:  _______________________________________________________________ 

❖ NEXT MEETING DATE:  April 3, 2025 @ 8:00 a.m. 

❖ MOTION TO ADJOURN: _______________________________________Time: _____________ 

❖ DATES TO REMEMBER:  

➢ March 18 & 19 – RRWMB Joint Conference - Moorhead 



Roseau River Watershed District                     pg. 1                             February 6, 2025 
 

 

  MINUTES OF THE ROSEAU RIVER WATERSHED DISTRICT BOARD  

OF MANAGERS MEETING HELD FEBRUARY 6, 2025 

 

ORDER: Chairman Diesen called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance.    

 

MANAGERS PRESENT: Carter Diesen, Laverne Voll, Jason Braaten, James Johnson, and 

Cody Schmalz 

 

STAFF PRESENT: Administrator Halstensgard, Technician Broten, and Assistant Wensloff 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: Tom Enright, DNR; Randy Prachar;  

 

CONSULTING STAFF PRESENT:  Erik Jones; HEI, Nate Dalager; HDR, Michelle Moren; 

Attorney 

 

AGENDA: A motion was made by Manager Voll to approve the agenda with changes.  It was 

seconded by Manager Johnson. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: A motion to approve the Consent Agenda as revised, was made by 

Manager Johnson and seconded by Manager Schmalz. The motion was carried unanimously. 

Adoption of the Consent Agenda included: 

• Approval of the January 2, 2025 regular meeting minutes.  

• Approval of the January 13, 2025 special meeting minutes. 

• Treasurer report updates - interest income of $140.23, and additional bills for RRWMB 

$12,096.00; North Pine Services for $660.60; Moren Law Office bill $2,752.50; Houston 

Engineering for River Restoration $4,971.00, Big Swamp North $10,396.75, and Hay 

Creek Sub-watershed $28,782.25.  

• Manager and employee expense vouchers as read by Manager Braaten.  

 

PERMITS: There were no permits for this meeting. 

 

DELEGATE: There were no delegates for this meeting. 

 

OLD BUSINESS:  

Administrator Halstensgard revisited the River Trail land acquisition stating that a motion 

is needed to move forward with the David S. Lee land acquisition as outlined in the purchase 

agreement. A motion was made by Manager Voll to move forward with the land acquisition and 

signing the purchase agreement, seconded by Manager Braaten. Motion carried unanimously. 

Administrator Halstensgard discussed the agenda items for the CAC meeting scheduled 

for February 26, 2025. She will be presenting on the RRWD Summer Tour to hopefully draw 

some interest for that event. She asked for any additional input as postcards will be mailed out 

shortly.  

Attorney Moren spoke about the Petition for Reestablishment of three ditch systems. 

Manager Braaten made a motion to adopt the resolution to appoint HDR to reestablish drainage 

system records for CD8. Manager Johnson seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.  



Roseau River Watershed District                     pg. 2                             February 6, 2025 
 

 

Manager Johnson made a motion to adopt the resolution to appoint HDR to reestablish drainage 

system records for WD3. Manager Braaten seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

Manager Voll made a motion to adopt the resolution to appoint HDR to reestablish drainage 

system records for SD51. Manager Braaten seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

NEW BUSINESS:  

Brady Martz & Associates, P.C. submitted an engagement letter for the 2024 audit. A 

motion was made by Manager Johnson to approve the Brady Martz 2024 audit engagement letter 

with revision of the name from Two Rivers Watershed District to Roseau River Watershed 

District on page one. The motion was seconded by Manager Schmalz. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

Administrator Halstensgard gave an update on our HVAC system. Paul Baumgartner, 

with NorthWoods Heating and Cooling, came to our office and audited the current system which 

was determined not to code. He recommended upgrading the furnace, reconfiguring ductwork 

and adding a heater to the shop area. Manager Voll made a motion to upgrade the HVAC system 

as recommended in the quote. Manager Johnson seconded the motion. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

Administrator Halstensgard asked the board if there was any interest in reviewing parcels 

the District currently pays property taxes on and looked at changing to tax exempt status. After 

some discussion, no action was taken at this time. 

 

PROJECT UPDATES:  

 

Big Swamp North: HDR Engineering submitted a scope of work for the Badger Creek 

component of the Big Swamp North project area. Manager Braaten made a motion to approve 

the scope of work. Chairman Diesen seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. Badger 

Creek would serve as the outlet to Whitney Lake Site A. 

 

Project Updates paused for Bid Opening at 1:00p.m. *Continued after Bid Opening. 

 

1:00 P.M. ROSEAU LAKE: BID OPENING - 

There was a total of four bids received, complete with bid bonds, submitted for the Roseau Lake 

Rehabilitation Project Phases 3 & 4. They were from Gladen Construction, Zavoral 

Construction, Spruce Valley Corporation, and Davidson Construction. A bid tabulation will be 

completed. 

Manager Voll made a motion to table the bids for further review by HDR Engineering. The 

review will be done within a 60-day time period. Manager Schmalz seconded the motion. The 

motion carried unanimously.  

 

PROJECT UPDATES: *Continued  

 

River Restoration:  After some discussion on the Michaelson land exchange, Manager Braaten 

made a motion to approve the agreement as drafted. Manager Johnson seconded the motion. 

Manager Voll and Manager Schmalz were opposed. The motion carried with 3 managers in favor 

and two opposed. There was also extensive discussion about the US Army Corps of Engineer’s 

(COE) permit delay due to the proximity of this project to the Duxby Levee. There was 

discussion on how to proceed to acquire the needed permits in a timely manner. 

 



Roseau River Watershed District                     pg. 3                             February 6, 2025 
 

 

Sprague Creek: Manger Johnson made motion to approve the purchasing and delivery of 

materials quoted by R&Q Trucking (gravel) and CMI (sheetpile). Manager Braaten seconded the 

motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Roseau Lake: There were two payment applications from Spruce Valley Corporation before the 

board for approval, payment application #01-12 for $222,313.65 and payment application #01-13 

for $47,500.00. Manager Voll made a motion to pay both payment applications. Manager 

Schmalz seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

REPORTS:  

 

RRWMB: Manager Braaten gave updates on the RRWMB.  

 

Technician: Technician Broten gave an update on the WD #3 Lateral 1 outlet extension 

discussion with landowners. There was also discussion on sloughing and potential culvert and 

trap failure on County Road 10.  

A survey of the Weiland property along the SD51 was completed where the landowner 

has reported sloughing along the riverbank.  

 

Administrator: Administrator Halstensgard provided a written report and reviewed the following 

items: 

• Red River Basin Commission (RRBC) Conference – Update  

• MN Watersheds Legislative Event – Feb 19th-20th  

• 26th Annual Joint Conference – March 18th & 19th 

• Brochure – A motion was made by Manager Voll to approve Houston Engineering to 

create an informational district brochure with a budget of $2,000. The motion was 

seconded by Manager Johnson. Motion carried unanimously. 

• HVAC proposal – Discussion took place during the meeting 

• Whitney Lake – Soil borings and quotes 

 

OTHER BUSINESS:  

 

Manager Johnson stated that Rick Solberg had contacted him about property Kasey Solberg 

owns in the Whitney Lake Site A project area. The land is currently on the market with an asking 

price of $3,800 per acre. There was no board action taken on this item. 

 

After a motion by Manager Braaten, seconded by Manager Schmalz, the meeting was adjourned 

at 2:23p.m. The next meeting will be held March 6th, 2025, at 8:00 a.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 

              

 Laverne Voll, Secretary    Tracy Halstensgard, Administrator 

 

                                                              



February 2025 Treasurer's Report 

Checkbook Balance as of January 27, 2025 $690,180.37
Receipts: 
Citizens State Bank --  interest   
Roseau County -- share of taxes 25,310.54$                     
Kittson County -- share of taxes 29.54$                            
RR JPB -- Quickbooks reimbursement 1,072.68$                       
Marshall County -- share of taxes 572.92$                          
RR JPB -- Oak Crest Coulee Inv 2024-03 150,159.27$                  
Beltrami County -- share of taxes 600.77$                          

Total: 177,745.72$                  
Bills:

Tracy Halstensgard -- Salary, Ins stipend & cell reimbursement 5,956.89$                       

Blaine Broten -- Salary, Ins stipend & cell reimbursement 3,172.91$                       

Tawni Wensloff -- wages 2,683.01$                       

Tracy Halstensgard -- Mileage and expenses 783.32$                          

Jason Braaten -- Per Diem & mileage 261.67$                          

Carter Diesen -- Per Diem & mileage 413.51$                          

James Johnson -- Per Diem & mileage 926.42$                          

Cody Schmalz -- Per Diem & mileage 181.93$                          

LaVerne Voll -- Per Diem & mileage 1,110.46$                       

Elan Financial Services -- credit card 2,488.56$                       

City Of Roseau -- utilities 206.42$                          

Marco -- copier maintenance contract 177.66$                          

Marco Technologies -- contract invoice - 3 months 273.00$                          

Patrick Moren Law Office -- Legal Fees 2,752.50$                       

Roseau Times Region -- Bid notice 734.40$                          

Roseau Electric Co-op -- Int/phone -- 126.85$                          

Minnesota Energy Resources -- natural gas 230.11$                          

Northern Resources Cooperative -- gas for vehicle 26.02$                            

Coast True Value --  supplies 147.85$                          

Verizon Wireless -- Trimble 40.01$                            

Sjoberg Cable TV -- email service 6.00$                               

Smith Partners -- Roseau River easement acquisition 2,458.00$                       

Jon Schauer, Dba Consulting -- year-end financials & tax filing 3,478.87$                       

Dot.com Connections -- website updating 140.00$                          

North Pine Services -- snow removal 1,695.60$                       

Simmons Contracting LLC -- Hay Creek connection channel work 18,690.00$                     

Red River Watershed Management Board -- share of taxes 7,578.03$                       

Red River Watershed Management Board -- share of stream gage 12,096.00$                     

Spruce Valley Corporation -- Pay Applications 01-12 and 01-13 270,813.65$                  

CMI -- Roseau Lake sheetpile (Sprague Creek) 36,039.35$                     

Northwoods Heating -- new HVAC system 16,550.00$                     

Houston Engineering --  invoice #74782, 74873, & 74874 44,150.00$                     

HDR -- Inv #1200683884, 1200668448, & 1200683882 3,623.80$                       

HDR --  Inv #1200683886, 1200683883 & 1200688983 31,429.27$                     

Marco -- copier maintenance contract 177.66$                          

Nelson's Café -- Hay Creek Sub-watershed / CAC catering 597.97$                          

Total: $472,217.70



March 2025 Treasurer's Report 

Checkbook Balance as of February 28, 2025 $546,067.37
Receipts: 
Citizens State Bank --  interest   
State of Minnesota -- FHM grant; Roseau Lake 298,528.15$                  
State of Minnesota -- FHM grant; Whitney Lake 55,297.68$                     

Marshall County -- share of taxes 90.32$                            
Total: 353,916.15$                  

Bills:

Tracy Halstensgard -- Salary, Ins stipend & cell reimbursement 5,956.89$                       

Blaine Broten -- Salary, Ins stipend & cell reimbursement 3,172.89$                       

Tawni Wensloff -- wages 2,704.55$                       

Tracy Halstensgard -- Mileage and expenses

Jason Braaten -- Per Diem & mileage

Carter Diesen -- Per Diem & mileage

James Johnson -- Per Diem & mileage

Cody Schmalz -- Per Diem & mileage

LaVerne Voll -- Per Diem & mileage

Elan Financial Services -- credit card 2,772.94$                       

City Of Roseau -- utilities

Marco -- copier maintenance contract 177.66$                          

Marco Technologies -- contract invoice 91.00$                            

Patrick Moren Law Office -- Legal Fees  

Roseau Times Region -- notice  & open house ad 316.20$                          

Roseau Electric Co-op -- Int/phone -- 126.85$                          

Minnesota Energy Resources -- natural gas  

Northern Resources Cooperative -- gas for vehicle  

Coast True Value --  supplies  

Verizon Wireless -- Trimble 40.01$                            

Sjoberg Cable TV -- email service 6.00$                               

Smith Partners -- Roseau River easement acquisition  

Jon Schauer, Dba Consulting -- year-end financials & tax filing 1,881.25$                       

Dot.com Connections -- website updating  

North Pine Services -- snow removal  

Spruce Valley Corporation --  

Houston Engineering --  invoice #  

HDR -- WD 3, 12-29-24 Through 1-25-25 Inv #1200692764 1,160.00$                       

HDR -- CD 8,  12-29-24 Through 1-25-25  Inv # 1200692765 4,283.75$                       

HDR -- Technical Assistrance, 12-29-24 Through 1-25-25 Inv #1200692763 6,545.00$                       

HDR --  Roseau Lake  12-29-24 Through 1-25-25 Inv #1200692767 22,857.59$                     

HDR -- Roseau & Malung Dams 12-29-24 Through 1-25-25Inv 1200692771 586.04$                          

HDR --  Whitney Lake site A   12-29-24 Through 1-25-25 Inv #1200692829 6,156.55$                       

Total: $58,835.17













 

hdrinc.com  

 213 LaBree Ave N, Thief River Falls, MN 56701-2063 
Phone: (218) 681-6100   Fax: (218) 681-6262 
 

 

 

 

January 30, 2025 

 

Ms. Tracy Halstensgard, Administrator 
Roseau River Watershed District 
714 6th Street SW                                                                                                                                                     
Roseau, MN 56751 

<delivered via email> 
 
RE: Proposal – Roseau Lake – Phase 3-4 – Construction Services 

Dear Ms. Halstensgard, 

HDR Engineering, Inc. (HDR) is pleased to provide the following proposal for Task Order #4 - Phase 3 
and 4 Construction Services. Future project tasks and services are required for future phases of  the 
Roseau Lake Project which are anticipated to be included under additional task orders. 

We look forward to the opportunity to work with you on this project. If  you have any questions regarding 
the attached scope of  services, please contact me at (218) 681-6100. 

Sincerely,  
 
HDR Engineering, Inc. 
 
    
   
 
Nathan Dalager, P.E.    Christine Wiegert    
Project Manager    Sr. Vice President / MN-WI Area Manager 

Encl:   Proposal, Task Order #4 
Budget Spreadsheet 
HDR Engineering, Inc. Terms and Conditions for Professional Services 
 



 

2 
 

 

Project Understanding and Scope of Services 
The Roseau River Watershed District (RRWD) is constructing the Roseau Lake project. This scope of  
work includes tasks and deliverables deemed necessary to complete the construction administration for 
Phase 3 and 4 of  the project, which includes the following components:  

• East Embankment and Road Raise  
• Inlet Channel 
• East Inlet Structure 

 

These tasks include the following: 

1. Project Management & Ongoing Project Coordination  
2. Construction Services and Inspections  
3. As-Built Survey & Plans 

Proposed Action Description 
The proposed Roseau Lake Rehabilitation Project consists of  construction management throughout 
Phase 3 and 4 construction. The f inal engineering phase is complete, and construction is the next and 
f inal component of this project. The RRWD Board of Managers has directed HDR to advertise the Phase 
3 and 4 set of  plans and specif ications. 

Proposed Project Team  
The project team will consist of  HDR staf f  that has experience in construction engineering and 
documentation in addition to well established relationships with agency experts. The team may consist of  
the following staf f : 

Role Staff 
Client/Project Manager Nate Dalager, PE 
Sr. Water Resources Engineer Glen Krogman, PE 
Design Technician / Inspector Randy Knott 
Environmental Scientist Torin McCormack 
CAD Matt Angel 
Geotechnical Engineer Kerrie Berg, PE 

Scope of Services 

1.0 Project Management & Coordination 
This task consists of the overall management of  the project, project communication, coordination of  
meetings, and contacting of  Project partners.  

1.1 Project Management & Administration. Monitor and control the Project budget, scope of  work, 
and schedule; management of the Project goals and objectives; management and coordination of 
resources including staf f  scheduling and invoicing. 
 

1.2 Coordination and Meetings. Schedule, review, prepare, participate, and help conduct 
coordination meetings amongst partners. Signif icant collaboration will occur with RRWD and 
Contractor including weekly construction coordination meetings. 



 
 
 

3 
 

1.3 Assist the Owner with Bid Activities. HDR will assist the owner with bid opening activities such 
as attending the bid opening, initial screening of  bids, bid evaluation, and recommendation of  
award.  
 

1.4 Pay Estimates. HDR will develop and review monthly progress payments to the Contractor for 
the RRWD. 
 

1.5 Development of Additional Phase Packages. HDR will assist RRWD in developing future 
construction phase bid packages. 

 
DELIVERABLES: 

• Monthly invoices for each individual task and coordination with RRWD Administrator. 
• Recommendation of  construction contract Award to the Owner. 
• Draf t construction contract provided to Owner. 
• Attendance at RRWD Board meetings, presentations, and updates to the Board. 
• Document Project completion and quantities. 
• Prepare and review monthly contractor progress payments. 
• Facilitate/attend/document weekly project status meetings. 
• Ongoing Project coordination over the next 18 months. 
• Development of  additional Phased bid packages. 

 
ASSUMPTIONS: 

• Duration of  the task is January 2025 to October 2026.   
• HDR will provide a construction update at each monthly RRWD Board meeting.  The board 

meetings will be held in Northwest Minnesota and be attended by 1 HDR staf f  person. 
• Weekly project meetings will be held for the scheduled project duration and include, at a 

minimum, one HDR, Watershed, and Contractor staf f . 
o 1 on-site project meeting is assumed per week while construction activity is occurring. If  

construction activity is not occurring but there are items requiring coordination, a 
conference call will be set up. 

o Weekly 0.5 hour long coordination meetings are assumed for the scheduled duration of  
the project. 

• HDR will prepare a recommendation of  construction contract.  Final approval and contract 
award/proceed will be the responsibility and authority of  the RRWD. 

• HDR will prepare monthly progress payments to the contractor while work is actively occurring. 
Labor estimate is based on preparing up to 8 progress payments. 

o Progress payments will be cross-checked with HDR construction diaries with RRWD 
providing f inal approval. 

 

2.0 Construction Services and Inspections 
This task includes the overall management of  the construction for the Roseau Lake Rehabilitation 
Construction - Phase 3 and 4 Project which includes the East Embankment and Road Raise, Inlet 
Channel, and East Inlet Structure. 
 



 
 
 

4 
 

2.1 Document Pre-Construction Site Conditions 
Conduct a pre-construction site surface condition visual assessment of existing features reasonably 
expected to be impacted by either indirect construction operations or direct construction of  design 
features/elements and provide photo documentation of the pre-construction condition of  the project 
site and surroundings. 

2.2 Shop Drawings and RFI Administration 
HDR will review and execute Contractor submitted shop drawings and concrete mix designs prior to 
construction. HDR will review and provide responses to the Owner for Contractor submitted requests 
for information (RFI’s). 

2.3 Construction Inspection 
HDR will perform daily inspection and overview of  the Project construction while the Contractor is 
active and on site. Field observation forms and photographs will be documented and f iled. Project 
completion status and quantities will be documented corresponding to dates on site. 

2.4 Substantial Completion, Final Completion, and Project Close-out 
Work with the Contractor and Owner to confirm the work is substantially complete and ready for use 
by the Owner. Conf irm that closeout documents are submitted in accordance with the contract 
requirements. 
 

DELIVERABLES: 
• Photographic documentation of  existing site conditions. (electronic only) 
• Field observation forms. (electronic only) 

 
ASSUMPTIONS: 

• HDR will have primarily an inspection role with RRWD staf f  assisting.  
• HDR will provide recommendations to the Owner and all disputes and f inal decisions will be 

resolved by the Owner. 
• 8 hours per day for 70 working days of  construction inspection is assumed for the scheduled 

duration of  the project while the Contractor is active and onsite. 
• 20 submittals are assumed requiring review, comment, and distribution by HDR. Budget assumes 

less than 5 resubmittals (if  any).  
• 10 RFI’s are assumed to be addressed by HDR. 
 

3.0  As-Built Survey & Plans  
This task includes processing construction survey data, updating the plan drawings, and providing an 
as-built construction plan. 

3.1 Survey 
HDR will perform survey of  the completed Project. This will include cross-sections of  the 
embankments, ditches, structures, and culverts. 

3.2 Preparation of As-Built Plans 
HDR will update the f inal plans with the as-built survey data. 

 
DELIVERABLES: 

• As-built survey points. 
• One electronic (PDF) of  the as-built construction plans with approximately 40 sheets. 
• 2 printed copies of  the as-built construction plans. (11x17 sheet size) 

 
ASSUMPTIONS: 

• Two HDR employees will survey for two, 8-hour days (32 hours) to document the completed 
project. 



 
 
 

5 
 

• 40 sheets are assumed to require update for the as-built plans requiring 1 hours of  update per 
sheet. 

 

Schedule 
The construction dates and key milestones are outlined as summarized below. These dates are subject to 
change due to weather and unforeseen delays in construction, which may also require scope and fee 
changes. 

Begin Construction: March 1, 2025 

Final Completion: Between October 15, 2025 – October 15, 2026 

Cost Estimate 
The fee estimate for the completion of Phase 3 and 4 is $219,460, as outlined in the attached breakdown 
of  tasks, hours, and expenses through October 2026.  It is anticipated that the Contractor may finish f inal 
completion by that time. This work will be performed on a time and materials not-to-exceed basis. Our 
estimated costs are based upon our local experience and understanding of  the scope of  work and 
assumptions listed. Should the scope of work be modified including unforeseen delays in construction (or 
extend into 2027), it may be necessary to review scope changes and our cost estimate. 

  



 
 
 

6 
 

Please indicate your acceptance of this proposal by signing the Notice to Proceed (below) and 
returning one copy of the signed proposal to HDR. If you have any questions, please contact me 
at 218.681.6100.  
 

NOTICE TO PROCEED 
Owner:  Roseau River Watershed District 

By: ___________________________________  
Name: ________________________________  

Title: __________________________________  

Consultant:  HDR Engineering, Inc. 

By:  
Name: Christine Wiegert 

Title: Sr. Vice President / MN-WI Area Manager 

 

 



 
 
 

7 
 

 

 

 

Task No. Task/Title

D
al

ag
er

H
uw

e

An
ge

l

Kn
ot

t

Be
rg

N
el

so
n

Ju
ng

er
s

Br
en

to
n

M
cC

or
m

ac
k

Kr
og

m
an

 Hours Labor Fee

Hourly Rates  $   255  $   190  $   115  $   170  $   170  $   190  $      -    $      -    $   170  $   250  $      -   
1 Project Management 84 40 16 72 12 4 8 8 40 64 0 348 68,700.00$         
2 Construction Inspection 4 16 0 312 40 0 0 0 288 16 0 676 116,860.00$       
3 As-Built Survey and Plans 4 8 32 40 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 92 15,020.00$         

Totals 92 64 48 424 52 4 8 8 328 88 0 1116 200,580.00$       

HDR Labor Subtotal 200,580$            

Mileage ($0.75/mile) 12,000$              
GPS Equipment Rental ($350/day) 6,300$                

Printing / Plotting 580$                   

HDR Direct Expenses Subtotal 18,880$              

Total Fee 219,460$            



 1  (5/2023) 

HDR Engineering, Inc. Terms and Conditions 
for Floodplain, Dams and Levee Professional Services 

 
1. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE 
 Notwithstanding any other provision of any contract term between the 

ENGINEER and the OWNER, the standard of care for all professional 
engineering, consulting and related services performed or furnished by 
ENGINEER and its employees under this Agreement will be the care and 
skill ordinarily used by members of ENGINEER’s profession practicing 
under the same or similar circumstances at the same time and in the 
same locality.  ENGINEER makes no warranties, express or implied, 
under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with ENGINEER’s 
services.   

 

 ENGINEER and OWNER agree that no other party is an intended or 
unintended third-party beneficiary of this contract, and that ENGINEER’s 
duties run solely to OWNER. 

 

2. INSURANCE/INDEMNITY 
 ENGINEER agrees to procure and maintain, at its expense, Workers' 

Compensation insurance as required by statute; Employer's Liability of 
$250,000; Automobile Liability insurance of $1,500,000 combined single 
limit for bodily injury and property damage covering all vehicles, including 
hired vehicles, owned and non-owned vehicles; Commercial General 
Liability insurance of $1,500,000 combined single limit for personal injury 
and property damage; and Professional Liability insurance of $1,500,000 
per claim for protection against claims arising out of the performance of 
services under this Agreement caused by negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions for which ENGINEER is legally liable.  OWNER shall be made 
an additional insured on Commercial General and Automobile Liability 
insurance policies and certificates of insurance will be furnished to the 
OWNER.  ENGINEER agrees to indemnify OWNER for third party personal 
injury and property damage claims to the extent caused by ENGINEER's 
negligent acts, errors or omissions.  However, neither Party to this 
Agreement shall be liable to the other Party for any special, incidental, 
indirect, or consequential damages (including but not limited loss of use or 
opportunity; loss of good will; cost of substitute facilities, goods, or services; 
cost of capital; and/or fines or penalties), to loss of profits or revenue arising 
out of, resulting from, or in any way related to the project or the Agreement 
from any cause or causes, including but not limited to any such damages 
caused by the negligence, errors or omissions, strict liability or breach of 
contract. 

 

3. OPINIONS OF PROBABLE COST  
 Any opinions of probable project cost or probable construction cost 

provided by ENGINEER are made on the basis of information available to 
ENGINEER and on the basis of ENGINEER's experience and 
qualifications, and represents its judgment as an experienced and qualified 
professional engineer.  However, since ENGINEER has no control over the 
cost of labor, materials, equipment or services furnished by others, or over 
the contractor(s') methods of determining prices, or over competitive 
bidding or market conditions, ENGINEER does not guarantee that 
proposals, bids or actual project or construction cost will not vary from 
opinions of probable cost ENGINEER prepares. 

 

4. CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES 
 ENGINEER's observation or monitoring portions of the work performed 

under construction contracts shall not relieve the contractor from its 
responsibility for performing work in accordance with applicable contract 
documents.  ENGINEER shall not control or have charge of, and shall not 
be responsible for, construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, 
procedures of construction, health or safety programs or precautions 
connected with the work and shall not manage, supervise, control or have 
charge of construction.  ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts or 
omissions of the contractor or other parties on the project. ENGINEER shall 
be entitled to review all construction contract documents and to require that 
no provisions extend the duties or liabilities of ENGINEER beyond those set 
forth in this Agreement.  OWNER agrees to include ENGINEER as an 
indemnified party in OWNER’s construction contracts for the work, which 
shall protect ENGINEER to the same degree as OWNER.  Further, 
OWNER agrees that ENGINEER shall be listed as an additional insured 
under the construction contractor’s liability insurance policies. 

 
 

5. CONTROLLING LAW 
 This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the state where 

ENGINEER's services are performed. 
 

6. OWNER-PROVIDED SERVICES AND INFORMATION 
 OWNER will provide all criteria and information pertaining to the project in 

OWNER’s possession, and any requirements or budgetary limitations.  The 
OWNER agrees to bear full responsibility for the technical accuracy and 
content of OWNER-furnished documents, information and services. 

 

 In performing services hereunder, it is understood by OWNER that 
ENGINEER is not engaged in rendering any type of legal, insurance or 
accounting services, opinions or advice.  Further, it is the OWNER’s sole 
responsibility to obtain the advice of an attorney, insurance counselor or 
accountant to protect the OWNER’s legal and financial interests.   

 

7. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
 OWNER and ENGINEER, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, 

successors, assigns, and legal representatives to the covenants of this 
Agreement.  Neither OWNER nor ENGINEER will assign, sublet, or transfer 
any interest in this Agreement or claims arising therefrom without the 
written consent of the other. 

 

8. RE-USE OF DOCUMENTS 
 All documents, including all reports, drawings, specifications, computer 

software or other items prepared or furnished by ENGINEER pursuant to 
this Agreement, are instruments of service with respect to the project.  
ENGINEER retains ownership of all such documents.  OWNER may retain 
copies of the documents for its information and reference in connection with 
the project; however, none of the documents are intended or represented to 
be suitable for reuse by OWNER or others on extensions of the project or 
on any other project.  Any reuse without written verification or adaptation by 
ENGINEER for the specific purpose intended will be at OWNER's sole risk 
and without liability or legal exposure to ENGINEER, and OWNER will 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless ENGINEER from all claims, 
damages, losses and expenses, including attorney's fees, arising or 
resulting therefrom.  Any such verification or adaptation will entitle 
ENGINEER to further compensation at rates to be agreed upon by 
OWNER and ENGINEER.   

 

9. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 OWNER or ENGINEER may terminate the Agreement, in whole or in part, 

by giving seven (7) days written notice, if the other party substantially fails 
to fulfill its obligations under the Agreement through no fault of the 
terminating party. Where the method of payment is "lump sum," or cost 
reimbursement, the final invoice will include all services and expenses 
associated with the project up to the effective date of termination.  An 
equitable adjustment shall also be made to provide for termination 
settlement costs ENGINEER incurs as a result of commitments that had 
become firm before termination, and for a reasonable profit for services 
performed. 

 

10. SEVERABILITY 
 If any provision of this agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the 

remaining provisions shall be valid and binding upon the parties. One or 
more waivers by either party of any provision, term or condition shall not 
be construed by the other party as a waiver of any subsequent breach of 
the same provision, term or condition. 

 

11. INVOICES 
 ENGINEER will submit monthly invoices for services rendered and 

OWNER will make prompt payments in response to ENGINEER's 
invoices. 

 

 ENGINEER will retain receipts for reimbursable expenses in general 
accordance with Internal Revenue Service rules pertaining to the support 
of expenditures for income tax purposes. Receipts will be available for 
inspection by OWNER's auditors upon request. 

 

 If OWNER disputes any items in ENGINEER's invoice for any reason, 
including the lack of supporting documentation, OWNER may temporarily 
delete the disputed item and pay the remaining amount of the invoice.  



Terms & Conditions for Floodplain, Dams and Levee Professional Services 2  (5/2023) 

OWNER will promptly notify ENGINEER of the dispute and request 
clarification and/or correction.  After any dispute has been settled, 
ENGINEER will include the disputed item on a subsequent, regularly 
scheduled invoice, or on a special invoice for the disputed item only. 

 

 OWNER recognizes that late payment of invoices results in extra 
expenses for ENGINEER.  ENGINEER retains the right to assess 
OWNER interest at the rate of one percent (1%) per month, but not to 
exceed the maximum rate allowed by law, on invoices which are not paid 
within thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice.  In the event undisputed 
portions of ENGINEER's invoices are not paid when due, ENGINEER also 
reserves the right, after seven (7) days prior written notice, to suspend the 
performance of its services under this Agreement until all past due 
amounts have been paid in full. 

 

12. CHANGES 
 The parties agree that no change or modification to this Agreement, or any 

attachments hereto, shall have any force or effect unless the change is 
reduced to writing, dated, and made part of this Agreement.  The 
execution of the change shall be authorized and signed in the same 
manner as this Agreement.  Adjustments in the period of services and in 
compensation shall be in accordance with applicable paragraphs and 
sections of this Agreement.  Any proposed fees by ENGINEER are 
estimates to perform the services required to complete the project as 
ENGINEER understands it to be defined.  For those projects involving 
conceptual or process development services, activities often are not fully 
definable in the initial planning.  In any event, as the project progresses, 
the facts developed may dictate a change in the services to be performed, 
which may alter the scope.  ENGINEER will inform OWNER of such 
situations so that changes in scope and adjustments to the time of 
performance and compensation can be made as required.  If such change, 
additional services, or suspension of services results in an increase or 
decrease in the cost of or time required for performance of the services, an 
equitable adjustment shall be made, and the Agreement modified 
accordingly. 

 

13. CONTROLLING AGREEMENT 
 These Terms and Conditions shall take precedence over any inconsistent 

or contradictory provisions contained in any proposal, purchase order, 
requisition, notice-to-proceed, or like document. In resolving inconsistent 
or contradictory provisions between this Agreement and any other 
document or understanding, the terms of these Terms and Conditions 
shall control. 

 

14. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT AND NONDISCRIMINATION 
 In connection with the services under this Agreement, ENGINEER agrees 

to comply with the applicable provisions of federal and state Equal 
Employment Opportunity for  individuals based on color, religion, sex, or 
national origin, or disabled veteran, recently separated veteran, other 
protected veteran and armed forces service medal veteran status, 
disabilities under provisions of executive order 11246, and other 
employment, statutes and regulations, as stated in Title 41 Part 60 of the 
Code of Federal Regulations § 60-1.4 (a-f), § 60-300.5 (a-e), § 60-741 (a-
e). 

 

15. CERTIFICATIONS 
The use of the word “certify” or “certification” by a registered professional 
engineer in the practice of professional engineering or land surveying 
constitutes an expression of professional opinion regarding those facts or 
findings which are the subject of the certification, and does not constitute 
a warranty or  guarantee, either expressed or implied. Certification of 
analyses is a statement that the analyses have been performed correctly 
and in accordance with sound engineering practices. Certification of 
structural works is a statement that the works are designed in accordance 
with sound engineering practices and OWNER approved design loads.  
Certification of “as built”' conditions is a statement that the structure(s) has 
been built according to specifically identified drawings, specifications and 
contract documents to the extent the structure(s) is readily observable, is in 
place, and is fully functioning.  The definition and legal effect of any and all 
certifications shall be limited as stated herein. 

 

16. EXECUTION 
 This Agreement, including the exhibits and schedules made part hereof, 

constitute the entire Agreement between ENGINEER and OWNER, 
supersedes and controls over all prior written or oral understandings.  This 

Agreement may be amended, supplemented or modified only by a written 
instrument duly executed by the parties. 

 

17. ALLOCATION OF RISK 
 OWNER AND ENGINEER HAVE EVALUATED THE RISKS AND 

REWARDS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PROJECT, INCLUDING 
ENGINEER’S FEE RELATIVE TO THE RISKS ASSUMED, AND AGREE 
TO ALLOCATE CERTAIN OF THE RISKS, SO, TO THE FULLEST 
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE TOTAL AGGREGATE LIABILITY 
OF ENGINEER (AND ITS RELATED CORPORATIONS, 
SUBCONSULTANTS AND EMPLOYEES) TO OWNER AND THIRD 
PARTIES GRANTED RELIANCE IS LIMITED TO THE LESSER OF 
$1,000,000 OR ITS FEE, FOR ANY AND ALL INJURIES, DAMAGES, 
CLAIMS, LOSSES, OR EXPENSES (INCLUDING ATTORNEY AND 
EXPERT FEES) ARISING OUT OF ENGINEER’S SERVICES OR THIS 
AGREEMENT REGARDLESS OF CAUSE(S) OR THE THEORY OF 
LIABILITY, INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE, INDEMNITY, OR OTHER 
RECOVERY.   

 

18. LITIGATION SUPPORT 
In the event ENGINEER is required to respond to a subpoena, 
government inquiry or other legal process related to the services in 
connection with a legal or dispute resolution proceeding to which 
ENGINEER is not a party, OWNER shall reimburse ENGINEER for 
reasonable costs in responding and compensate ENGINEER at its then 
standard rates for engineering services when gathering information and 
documents and shall pay ENGINEER its standard rates for providing 
expert witness services when attending depositions, hearings, and trial.  
 

If ENGINEER is made a party to any litigation concerning OWNER’s flood 
control structures, OWNER shall reimburse ENGINEER for all costs of 
defense pending a final determination of ENGINEER’s professional 
liability.  If ENGINEER is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to 
have been negligent, ENGINEER shall reimburse OWNER the costs of 
defense paid by OWNER, and shall satisfy any judgment up to 
ENGINEER’s limitation of liability.  Any amount in excess of ENGINEER’s 
limitation of liability shall be paid by OWNER. 

 

19. MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES AND SYSTEMS 
 OWNER agrees that structures and systems studied, reviewed, analyzed 

or designed by the ENGINEER are dependent upon OWNER’s continued 
operation and maintenance of the project structures and systems in 
accordance with all permits, laws and regulations that permit the 
construction and operation of the structures and systems, including any 
Engineer prepared operations and maintenance plans.  Should OWNER 
fail to operate or maintain the structures to be in full compliance with 
permits, approvals, and operations and maintenance plans, ENGINEER 
shall have no liability to OWNER, and OWNER shall indemnify, release 
and hold ENGINEER and its employees harmless from any liability 
resulting from any direct or consequential damage resulting from such 
non-compliance, including but not limited to claims made by third-parties 
against ENGINEER. 

 

20. VISUAL INSPECTIONS 
For visual inspections, OWNER hereby releases, holds harmless, 
indemnifies and agrees to defend ENGINEER against any claims, 
damages, losses, liabilities, expenses or costs arising out of any failure 
to detect hidden, covered, inaccessible, or internal structural or material 
defects, corrosion, or damages in components, embedment, reinforcing, 
anchorages and parts of equipment, structures, or mechanisms being 
inspected, that are not readily discernible by external visual inspection 
through reasonable efforts. 
 

21.  DESIGN CRITERIA DISCLAIMER 
Prevailing science and understanding of natural forces including, but 
not limited to, flood, rain, temperature, earthquakes and wind indicates 
a dynamic and non-stationary system of potential loads. OWNER 
acknowledges and accepts all liability for the selection of appropriate 
return intervals and selection of extreme natural events for the use in 
the design of the dam, levee or flood control system. OWNER 
acknowledges they have taken into account the impacts of the various 
natural events when selecting the design criteria for the project. 
 

22. OPERATIONAL TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS 
OWNER agrees that the effectiveness of operational technology 
systems and features designed, recommended or assessed by 



Terms & Conditions for Floodplain, Dams and Levee Professional Services 3  (5/2023) 

ENGINEER (collectively “OT Systems”) are dependent upon OWNER’s 
continued operation and maintenance of the OT Systems in accordance 
with all standards, best practices, laws, and regulations that govern the 
operation and maintenance of the OT Systems.  OWNER shall be 
solely responsible for operating and maintaining the OT Systems in 
accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and industry standards 
(e.g. ISA, NIST, etc.) and best practices, which generally include but 
are not limited to, cyber security policies and procedures, 
documentation and training requirements, continuous monitoring of 
assets for tampering and intrusion, periodic evaluation for asset 
vulnerabilities, implementation and update of appropriate technical, 
physical, and operational standards, and offline testing of all 
software/firmware patches/updates prior to placing updates into 
production.  Additionally, OWNER recognizes and agrees that OT 
Systems are subject to internal and external breach, compromise, and 
similar incidents.  Security features designed, recommended or 
assessed by ENGINEER are intended to reduce the likelihood that OT 
Systems will be compromised by such incidents.  However, ENGINEER 
does not guarantee that OWNER’s OT Systems are impenetrable and 
OWNER agrees to waive any claims against ENGINEER resulting from 
any such incidents that relate to or affect OWNER’s OT Systems.  
 

23. FORCE MAJEURE 
ENGINEER shall not be responsible for delays caused by factors 
beyond ENGINEER’s reasonable control, including but not limited to 
delays because of strikes, lockouts, work slowdowns or stoppages, 
government ordered industry shutdowns, power or server outages, acts 
of nature, widespread infectious disease outbreaks (including, but not 
limited to epidemics and pandemics), failure of any governmental or 
other regulatory authority to act in a timely manner, failure of the 
OWNER to furnish timely information or approve or disapprove of 
ENGINEER’s services or work product, or delays caused by faulty 
performance by the OWNER’s or by contractors of any level or any 
other events or circumstances not within the reasonable control of the 
party affected, whether similar or dissimilar to any of the foregoing. 
When such delays beyond ENGINEER’s reasonable control occur, the 
OWNER agrees that ENGINEER shall not be responsible for damages, 
nor shall ENGINEER be deemed in default of this Agreement, and the 
parties will negotiate an equitable adjustment to ENGINEER’s schedule 
and/or compensation if impacted by the force majeure event or 
condition. 
 

24.  EMPLOYEE IMMUNITY 
The parties to this Agreement acknowledge that an individual employee 
or agent may not be held individually liable for negligence with regard to 
services provided under this Agreement. To the maximum extent 
permitted by law, the parties intend i) that this limitation on the liability of 
employees and agents shall include directors, officers, employees, 
agents and representatives of each party and of any entity for whom a 
party is legally responsible, and ii) that any such employee or agent 
identified by name in this Agreement shall not be deemed a party. 
Specifically, in the event that all or a portion of the services is performed 
in the State of Florida, the following provision shall be applicable: 

THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT 
PURSUANT TO APPLICABLE FLORIDA 
STATUTES AN INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE 
OR AGENT MAY NOT BE HELD 
INDIVIDUALLY LIABLE FOR 
NEGLIGENCE WITH REGARD TO 
SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT. To the maximum extent 
permitted by law, the Parties intend i) that 
this limitation on the liability of employees 
and agents shall include  directors, officers, 
employees, agents and representatives of 
each Party and of any entity for whom a 

Party is legally responsible, and ii) that any 
such employee or agent identified by name 
in this Agreement shall not be deemed a 
Party.  The Parties further acknowledge that 
the Florida statutes referred to above 
include but are not limited to: 
§558.0035(1)(a)-(e);§471.023(3)(an 
engineer is personally liable for negligence 
except as provided in § 558.0035); 
§472.021(3) (surveyor and mapper); 
§481.219(11)(architect and interior 
designer);§481.319(6) (landscape 
architect); and §492.111(4) (geologist). 



From: Huwe, Jacob
To: Tracy Halstensgard
Subject: Site A Soil Borings Quotes
Date: Friday, February 28, 2025 9:01:58 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
Terracon_PM5255013 - Whitney Site A_signed.pdf
AET Bid.pdf
Braun GEO PROPOSAL Roseau River Watershed Borings1.pdf

Hi Tracy,
 
We have received three quotes for the drilling and soil testing for Site A. Here is the summary:
 

 TOTAL
HDR Estimate  $          11,176
Terracon $          11,550
AET $          13,705
Braun $          18,742

 
Terracon has the best bid, and we have no issues with their proposal. If you are able to
authorize Terracon to proceed, we can notify them.
 
Sincerely,
~Jake
 
 

Jake Huwe, PE
Project Manager

 
213 LaBree Ave N, Suite 203
Thief River Falls, MN 56701
Office 218.681.6100
Mobile 218.416.2570
Jacob.Huwe@hdrinc.com
 
hdrinc.com/follow-us

 
 

mailto:Jacob.Huwe@hdrinc.com
mailto:Tracy@roseauriverwd.com
mailto:Jacob.Huwe@hdrinc.com
http://hdrinc.com/follow-us

S










 


1555 N 42nd Street – Unit B 


Grand Forks, ND 58203 


P (701) 772-2832 


Terracon.com 


Facilities  |  Environmental  |  Geotechnical  |  Materials 


Proposal Cover Page 


February 26, 2024 


Ms. Tracy Halstensgard 


Roseau River Watershed District 


714 6th Street Southwest 


Roseau, Minnesota 56751 


Attn: Ms. Kerrie Berg, PE 


 P: (218) 370-2279 


 E: Kerrie.berg@hdrinc.com 


RE: Proposal for Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing Services 


 Whitney Site A Exploration 


 North of County Road 26 and 250th Avenue 


 Roseau, Minnesota 


 Terracon Proposal No. PM5255013 


Dear Ms. Berg: 


We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal to Roseau River Watershed 


District to provide Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing services for the above 


referenced project. The following are exhibits to the attached Agreement for Services. 


  Exhibit A  Project Understanding 


  Exhibit B  Scope of Services 


  Exhibit C  Compensation and Project Schedule 


  Exhibit D  Site Location and Nearby Geotechnical Data 


  Exhibit E  Anticipated Exploration Plan 


Exhibit F  Fee Breakdown 


Our base fee to perform the Scope of Services described in this proposal is $11,550. 


Exhibit C includes details of our fees and consideration of additional services as well as 


a general breakdown of our anticipated schedule.  


Your authorization for Terracon to proceed in accordance with this proposal can be 


issued by signing and returning a copy of the attached Agreement for Services to our 


office. 


Sincerely, 


Terracon 


 


Jessica Wick     Debra A. Schroeder, PE 


Field Engineer    Senior Engineer 







Reference Number: PM5255013


Page 1 of 2 Rev. 11-22


AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES
This AGREEMENT is between Roseau River Watershed District (“Client”) and Terracon Consultants, Inc. (“Consultant”) for Services to be provided by
Consultant for Client on the Whitney Site A Exploration project (“Project”), as described in Consultant’s Proposal dated 02/25/2025 (“Proposal”), including
but not limited to the Project Information section, unless the Project is otherwise described in Exhibit A to this Agreement (which section or Exhibit is
incorporated into this Agreement).
1. Scope of Services. The scope of Consultant’s services is described in the Proposal, including but not limited to the Scope of Services section


(“Services”), unless Services are otherwise described in Exhibit B to this Agreement (which section or exhibit is incorporated into this Agreement).
Portions of the Services may be subcontracted. Consultant’s Services do not include the investigation or detection of, nor do recommendations in
Consultant’s reports address the presence or prevention of biological pollutants (e.g., mold, fungi, bacteria, viruses, or their byproducts) or occupant
safety issues, such as vulnerability to natural disasters, terrorism, or violence. If Services include purchase of software, Client will execute a separate
software license agreement. Consultant’s findings, opinions, and recommendations are based solely upon data and information obtained by and
furnished to Consultant at the time of the Services.


2. Acceptance/ Termination. Client agrees that execution of this Agreement is a material element of the consideration Consultant requires to
execute the Services, and if Services are initiated by Consultant prior to execution of this Agreement as an accommodation for Client at Client’s
request, both parties shall consider that commencement of Services constitutes formal acceptance of all terms and conditions of this Agreement.
Additional terms and conditions may be added or changed only by written amendment to this Agreement signed by both parties. In the event Client
uses a purchase order or other form to administer this Agreement, the use of such form shall be for convenience purposes only and any additional or
conflicting terms it contains are stricken. This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without prior written consent of the other party.  Either
party may terminate this Agreement or the Services upon written notice to the other. In such case, Consultant shall be paid costs incurred and fees
earned to the date of termination plus reasonable costs of closing the Project.


3. Change Orders. Client may request changes to the scope of Services by altering or adding to the Services to be performed. If Client so requests,
Consultant will return to Client a statement (or supplemental proposal) of the change setting forth an adjustment to the Services and fees for the
requested changes. Following Client’s review, Client shall provide written acceptance. If Client does not follow these procedures, but instead directs,
authorizes, or permits Consultant to perform changed or additional work, the Services are changed accordingly and Consultant will be paid for this work
according to the fees stated or its current fee schedule. If project conditions change materially from those observed at the site or described to
Consultant at the time of proposal, Consultant is entitled to a change order equitably adjusting its Services and fee.


4. Compensation and Terms of Payment. Client shall pay compensation for the Services performed at the fees stated in the Proposal, including
but not limited to the Compensation section, unless fees are otherwise stated in Exhibit C to this Agreement (which section or Exhibit is incorporated
into this Agreement). If not stated in either, fees will be according to Consultant’s current fee schedule. Fee schedules are valid for the calendar year in
which they are issued. Fees do not include sales tax.  Client will pay applicable sales tax as required by law. Consultant may invoice Client at least
monthly and payment is due upon receipt of invoice. Client shall notify Consultant in writing, at the address below, within 15 days of the date of the
invoice if Client objects to any portion of the charges on the invoice, and shall promptly pay the undisputed portion. Client shall pay a finance fee of
1.5% per month, but not exceeding the maximum rate allowed by law, for all unpaid amounts 30 days or older. Client agrees to pay all collection-related
costs that Consultant incurs, including attorney fees. Consultant may suspend Services for lack of timely payment. It is the responsibility of Client to
determine whether federal, state, or local prevailing wage requirements apply and to notify Consultant if prevailing wages apply.  If it is later determined
that prevailing wages apply, and Consultant was not previously notified by Client, Client agrees to pay the prevailing wage from that point forward, as
well as a retroactive payment adjustment to bring previously paid amounts in line with prevailing wages.  Client also agrees to defend, indemnify, and
hold harmless Consultant from any alleged violations made by any governmental agency regulating prevailing wage activity for failing to pay prevailing
wages, including the payment of any fines or penalties.


5. Third Party Reliance. This Agreement and the Services provided are for Consultant and Client’s sole benefit and exclusive use with no third party
beneficiaries intended. Reliance upon the Services and any work product is limited to Client, and is not intended for third parties other than those who
have executed Consultant’s reliance agreement, subject to the prior approval of Consultant and Client.


6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. CLIENT AND CONSULTANT HAVE EVALUATED THE RISKS AND REWARDS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS
PROJECT, INCLUDING CONSULTANT’S FEE RELATIVE TO THE RISKS ASSUMED, AND AGREE TO ALLOCATE CERTAIN OF THE
ASSOCIATED RISKS.  TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE TOTAL AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF CONSULTANT (AND ITS
RELATED CORPORATIONS AND EMPLOYEES) TO CLIENT AND THIRD PARTIES GRANTED RELIANCE IS LIMITED TO THE GREATER OF
$50,000 OR CONSULTANT'S FEE, FOR ANY AND ALL INJURIES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, LOSSES, OR EXPENSES (INCLUDING ATTORNEY
AND EXPERT FEES) ARISING OUT OF CONSULTANT’S SERVICES OR THIS AGREEMENT. PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT
AND UPON WRITTEN REQUEST FROM CLIENT, CONSULTANT MAY NEGOTIATE A HIGHER LIMITATION FOR ADDITIONAL
CONSIDERATION IN THE FORM OF A SURCHARGE TO BE ADDED TO THE AMOUNT STATED IN THE COMPENSATION SECTION OF THE
PROPOSAL.  THIS LIMITATION SHALL APPLY REGARDLESS OF AVAILABLE PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE,
CAUSE(S), OR THE THEORY OF LIABILITY, INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE, INDEMNITY, OR OTHER RECOVERY.  THIS LIMITATION SHALL NOT
APPLY TO THE EXTENT THE DAMAGE IS PAID UNDER CONSULTANT’S COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY POLICY.


7. Indemnity/Statute of Limitations. Consultant and Client shall indemnify and hold harmless the other and their respective employees from and
against legal liability for claims, losses, damages, and expenses to the extent such claims, losses, damages, or expenses are legally determined to be
caused by their negligent acts, errors, or omissions. In the event such claims, losses, damages, or expenses are legally determined to be caused by the
joint or concurrent negligence of Consultant and Client, they shall be borne by each party in proportion to its own negligence under comparative fault
principles.   Neither party shall have a duty to defend the other party, and no duty to defend is hereby created by this indemnity provision and such duty
is explicitly waived under this Agreement.  Causes of action arising out of Consultant’s Services or this Agreement regardless of cause(s) or the theory
of liability, including negligence, indemnity or other recovery shall be deemed to have accrued and the applicable statute of limitations shall commence
to run not later than the date of Consultant’s substantial completion of Services on the project.


8. Warranty. Consultant will perform the Services in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the
profession currently practicing under similar conditions in the same locale. EXCEPT FOR THE STANDARD OF CARE PREVIOUSLY STATED,
CONSULTANT MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR GUARANTEES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, RELATING TO CONSULTANT’S SERVICES AND
CONSULTANT DISCLAIMS ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR WARRANTIES IMPOSED BY LAW, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.


9. Insurance. Consultant represents that it now carries, and will continue to carry: (i) workers’ compensation insurance in accordance with the laws of
the states having jurisdiction over Consultant’s employees who are engaged in the Services, and employer’s liability insurance ($1,000,000); (ii)
commercial general liability insurance ($2,000,000 occ / $4,000,000 agg); (iii) automobile liability insurance ($2,000,000 B.I. and P.D. combined single
limit); (iv) umbrella liability ($5,000,000 occ / agg); and (v) professional liability insurance ($1,000,000 claim / agg). Certificates of insurance will be
provided upon request. Client and Consultant shall waive subrogation against the other party on all general liability and property coverage.







Reference Number: PM5255013


Page 2 of 2 Rev. 11-22


10. CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR LOSS OF PROFITS OR REVENUE; LOSS OF
USE OR OPPORTUNITY; LOSS OF GOOD WILL; COST OF SUBSTITUTE FACILITIES, GOODS, OR SERVICES; COST OF CAPITAL; OR FOR
ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES.


11. Dispute Resolution. Client shall not be entitled to assert a Claim against Consultant based on any theory of professional negligence unless and
until Client has obtained the written opinion from a registered, independent, and reputable engineer, architect, or geologist that Consultant has violated
the standard of care applicable to Consultant’s performance of the Services. Client shall provide this opinion to Consultant and the parties shall
endeavor to resolve the dispute within 30 days, after which Client may pursue its remedies at law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed
according to Kansas law.


12. Subsurface Explorations. Subsurface conditions throughout the site may vary from those depicted on logs of discrete borings, test pits, or other
exploratory services. Client understands Consultant’s layout of boring and test locations is approximate and that Consultant may deviate a reasonable
distance from those locations. Consultant will take reasonable precautions to reduce damage to the site when performing Services; however, Client
accepts that invasive services such as drilling or sampling may damage or alter the site. Site restoration is not provided unless specifically included in
the Services.


13. Testing and Observations. Client understands that testing and observation are discrete sampling procedures, and that such procedures indicate
conditions only at the depths, locations, and times the procedures were performed. Consultant will provide test results and opinions based on tests and
field observations only for the work tested. Client understands that testing and observation are not continuous or exhaustive, and are conducted to
reduce - not eliminate - project risk. Client shall cause all tests and inspections of the site, materials, and Services performed by Consultant to be timely
and properly scheduled in order for the Services to be performed in accordance with the plans, specifications, contract documents, and Consultant’s
recommendations. No claims for loss or damage or injury shall be brought against Consultant by Client or any third party unless all tests and
inspections have been so performed and Consultant’s recommendations have been followed. Unless otherwise stated in the Proposal, Client assumes
sole responsibility for determining whether the quantity and the nature of Services ordered by Client is adequate and sufficient for Client’s intended
purpose. Client is responsible (even if delegated to contractor) for requesting services, and notifying and scheduling Consultant so Consultant can
perform these Services. Consultant is not responsible for damages caused by Services not performed due to a failure to request or schedule
Consultant’s Services.  Consultant shall not be responsible for the quality and completeness of Client’s contractor’s work or their adherence to the
project documents, and Consultant’s performance of testing and observation services shall not relieve Client’s contractor in any way from its
responsibility for defects discovered in its work, or create a warranty or guarantee. Consultant will not supervise or direct the work performed by Client’s
contractor or its subcontractors and is not responsible for their means and methods. The extension of unit prices with quantities to establish a total
estimated cost does not guarantee a maximum cost to complete the Services. The quantities, when given, are estimates based on contract documents
and schedules made available at the time of the Proposal. Since schedule, performance, production, and charges are directed and/or controlled by
others, any quantity extensions must be considered as estimated and not a guarantee of maximum cost.


14. Sample Disposition, Affected Materials, and Indemnity. Samples are consumed in testing or disposed of upon completion of the testing
procedures (unless stated otherwise in the Services). Client shall furnish or cause to be furnished to Consultant all documents and information known
or available to Client that relate to the identity, location, quantity, nature, or characteristic of any hazardous waste, toxic, radioactive, or contaminated
materials (“Affected Materials”) at or near the site, and shall immediately transmit new, updated, or revised information as it becomes available. Client
agrees that Consultant is not responsible for the disposition of Affected Materials unless specifically provided in the Services, and that Client is
responsible for directing such disposition. In no event shall Consultant be required to sign a hazardous waste manifest or take title to any Affected
Materials. Client shall have the obligation to make all spill or release notifications to appropriate governmental agencies. The Client agrees that
Consultant neither created nor contributed to the creation or existence of any Affected Materials conditions at the site and Consultant shall not be responsible
for any claims, losses, or damages allegedly arising out of Consultant’s performance of Services hereunder, or for any claims against Consultant as a
generator, disposer, or arranger of Affected Materials under federal, state, or local law or ordinance.


15. Ownership of Documents. Work product, such as reports, logs, data, notes, or calculations, prepared by Consultant shall remain Consultant’s
property. Proprietary concepts, systems, and ideas developed during performance of the Services shall remain the sole property of Consultant. Files
shall be maintained in general accordance with Consultant’s document retention policies and practices.


16. Utilities. Unless otherwise stated in the Proposal, Client shall provide the location and/or arrange for the marking of private utilities and subterranean
structures. Consultant shall take reasonable precautions to avoid damage or injury to subterranean structures or utilities. Consultant shall not be
responsible for damage to subterranean structures or utilities that are not called to Consultant’s attention, are not correctly marked, including by a utility
locate service, or are incorrectly shown on the plans furnished to Consultant.


17. Site Access and Safety. Client shall secure all necessary site related approvals, permits, licenses, and consents necessary to commence and
complete the Services and will execute any necessary site access agreement.  Consultant will be responsible for supervision and site safety measures
for its own employees, but shall not be responsible for the supervision or health and safety precautions for any third parties, including Client’s
contractors, subcontractors, or other parties present at the site. In addition, Consultant retains the right to stop work without penalty at any time
Consultant believes it is in the best interests of Consultant’s employees or subcontractors to do so in order to reduce the risk of exposure to unsafe site
conditions. Client agrees it will respond quickly to all requests for information made by Consultant related to Consultant’s pre-task planning and risk
assessment processes.


Consultant: Terracon Consultants, Inc. Client: Roseau River Watershed District


By: Date: 2/26/2025 By: Date:


Name/Title: Debra A Schroeder / Senior Engineer Name/Title: Tracy Halstensgard /
Address: 1555 N 42nd St, Unit B Address: 108 3rd Ave SW


Grand Forks, ND  58203-0809 Roseau, MN  56751-1410
Phone: (701) 772-2832 Fax: (701) 772-2633 Phone: (218) 242-1737 Fax:
Email: Deb.Schroeder@terracon.com Email: rrwd@mncable.net







Proposal for Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing Services 


Whitney Site A Exploration | Roseau, Minnesota 


February 26, 2024 | Terracon Proposal No. PM5255013 


 


 


  Facilities  |  Environmental  |  Geotechnical  |  Materials 


Exhibit A – Project Understanding 


Our Scope of Services is based on our understanding of the project as described by HDR 


and the expected subsurface conditions as described below. We have not visited the 


project site to confirm the information provided. Aspects of the project, undefined or 


assumed, are highlighted as shown below. We request HDR and/or the design team 


verify all information prior to our initiation of field exploration activities. 


Planned Construction 


Site Location and Anticipated Conditions 


Item Description 


Parcel 


Information 


The project is located North of the intersection of County Road 


26 and 250th Avenue and approximately 12 ½ miles west of 


Roseau, Minnesota.  


Latitude: 48.8442° N Longitude: 96.0875° W 


(See Exhibit D) 


Existing 


Improvements 
Agricultural fields 


Current Ground 


Cover 
Agricultural fields 


Existing 


Topography 


Relatively flat in boring locations with grade changes less than 8 


feet across the site.  


Site Access 
We expect the site, and all exploration locations, are accessible 


with our track-mounted drilling equipment and support vehicles. 


Expected 


Subsurface 


Conditions 


Our experience near the vicinity of the proposed development 


and review of geologic maps indicates subsurface conditions 


Item Description 


Information 


Provided 


An email request for proposal was provided by Ms. Berg on 


February 14, 2025. The request included a site plan that 


includes requested boring depths, proposed laboratory testing 


and a kmz file with the site location was also included. 


Project 


Description 


We understand that the project includes soil borings to obtain 


information for embankment fill and the outlet structure at the 


Whitney Site A near Roseau, Minnesota. 







Proposal for Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing Services 


Whitney Site A Exploration | Roseau, Minnesota 


February 26, 2024 | Terracon Proposal No. PM5255013 


 


 


  Facilities  |  Environmental  |  Geotechnical  |  Materials 


Item Description 


consist of a thin layer of topsoil underlain by natural, inorganic 


lean and fat clays. 







Proposal for Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing Services 


Whitney Site A Exploration | Roseau, Minnesota 


February 26, 2024 | Terracon Proposal No. PM5255013 


 


 


  Facilities  |  Environmental  |  Geotechnical  |  Materials 


Exhibit B - Scope of Services 


Our proposed Scope of Services consists of field exploration, laboratory testing, and 


engineering/project delivery. These services are described in the following sections. 


Field Exploration 


HDR requested the following boring locations and depths: 


Number of 


Borings 
Planned Boring Depth (feet) 


1
 Planned Location 


2
 


1 10 
Borrow pit area 


2 20 


5 10 Embankment fill area 


1. Although not anticipated based on the geology in the vicinity of the project site, 


borings would be terminated at shallower depths if refusal is encountered. 


2. The planned boring locations are shown on the attached Anticipated 


Exploration Plan. 


Boring Layout and Elevations: We will use handheld GPS equipment to locate borings 


with an estimated horizontal accuracy of +/-20 feet. Field measurements from existing 


site features may be utilized. If available, approximate elevations will be obtained by 


interpolation from a site specific, surveyed topographic map. We can alternatively 


coordinate with your Project Surveyor to include locations and surface elevations in 


project information if so requested. 


Subsurface Exploration Procedures: We will advance borings with a track-mounted 


drill rig using hollow stem augers. Samples will be obtained at 2 ½ foot intervals. Soil 


sampling is typically performed using thin-wall tube and/or split-barrel sampling 


procedures. The split-barrel samplers are driven in accordance with the standard 


penetration test (SPT). The samples will be placed in appropriate containers, taken to 


our soil laboratory for testing, and classified by a Geotechnical Engineer. In addition, we 


will observe and record groundwater levels during drilling and at completion of boring.  


Our exploration team will prepare field boring logs as part of standard drilling operations 


including sampling depths, penetration distances, and other relevant sampling 


information. Field logs include visual classifications of materials observed during drilling 


and our interpretation of subsurface conditions between samples. Final boring logs, 


prepared from field logs, represent the Geotechnical Engineer's interpretation and 


include modifications based on observations and laboratory tests. 







Proposal for Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing Services 


Whitney Site A Exploration | Roseau, Minnesota 


February 26, 2024 | Terracon Proposal No. PM5255013 


 


 


  Facilities  |  Environmental  |  Geotechnical  |  Materials 


Property Disturbance: Terracon will take reasonable efforts to reduce damage to the 


property. However, it should be understood that in the normal course of our work some 


disturbance could occur including rutting of the ground surface and damage to 


landscaping and/or crops.  


We will backfill borings in accordance with Minnesota Department of Health (MDH) 


requirements. Our services do not include repair of the site beyond backfilling our 


boreholes and patching existing pavements. Excess auger cuttings will be dispersed in 


the general vicinity of the borehole. Because backfill material often settles below the 


surface after a period, we recommend boreholes to be periodically checked and 


backfilled, if necessary.  


Safety 


Terracon is not aware of environmental concerns at this project site that would create 


health or safety hazards associated with our exploration program; thus, our Scope 


considers standard OSHA Level D Personal Protection Equipment (PPE) appropriate. Our 


Scope of Services does not include environmental site assessment services, but 


identification of unusual or unnatural materials observed while drilling will be noted on 


our logs. 


Consultant will be responsible for supervision and site safety measures for its own 


employees, but shall not be responsible for the supervision or health and safety 


precautions for any third parties, including Client’s contractors, subcontractors, or other 


parties present at the site. In addition, Consultant retains the right to stop work without 


penalty at any time Consultant believes it is in the best interests of Consultant’s 


employees or subcontractors to do so in order to reduce the risk of exposure to unsafe 


site conditions. Client agrees it will respond quickly to all requests for information made 


by Consultant related to Consultant’s pre-task planning and risk assessment processes. 


Exploration efforts require borings into the subsurface, therefore Terracon will comply 


with local regulations to request a utility location service through Gopher State One Call. 


We will consult with the landowner/client regarding potential utilities or other unmarked 


underground hazards. Based upon the results of this consultation, we will consider the 


need for alternative subsurface exploration methods as the safety of our field crew is a 


priority.  


Private utilities should be marked by the owner/client prior to commencement 


of field exploration. Terracon will not be responsible for damage to private 


utilities not disclosed to us.  


The detection of underground utilities is dependent upon the composition and 


construction of the utility line; some utilities are comprised of non-electrically conductive 







Proposal for Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing Services 


Whitney Site A Exploration | Roseau, Minnesota 


February 26, 2024 | Terracon Proposal No. PM5255013 


 


 


  Facilities  |  Environmental  |  Geotechnical  |  Materials 


materials and may not be readily detected. The use of a private utility locate service 


would not relieve the landowner/client of their responsibilities in identifying private 


underground utilities. 


Site Access: Terracon must be granted access to the site by the property owner. 


Without information to the contrary, we consider acceptance of this proposal as 


authorization to access the property for conducting field exploration in accordance with 


the Scope of Services. Our proposed fees do not include time to negotiate and 


coordinate access with landowners or tenants. Terracon will conduct field services during 


normal business hours (Monday through Friday between 7:00am and 5:00pm). If our 


exploration must take place over a weekend or at night, please contact us so we can 


adjust our schedule and fee. 


Based on satellite imagery, access to two of the borings (BH-25-01 and BH-25-06) may 


be difficult and tree clearing/trimming may be required. Costs for clearing or trimming 


are not included in our fees. Upon receiving authorization, we can discuss site access 


and required offsets of borings or clearing. 


Laboratory Testing 


The project engineer will review field data and assign laboratory tests to understand the 


engineering properties of various soil strata. Exact types and number of tests cannot be 


defined until completion of fieldwork, but we anticipate the following laboratory testing 


may be performed:  


■ Water content – 40 tests 


■ Atterberg limits – 8 tests 


■ Grain size analysis with hydrometer – 2 tests 


■ One dimensional consolidation – 2 tests 


■ Unconsolidated-undrained triaxial compression (1 point) – 2 tests 


■ Density and unit weight – 6 tests 


Our laboratory testing program includes examination of soil samples by an engineer. 


Based on the results of our field and laboratory programs, we will describe and classify 


soil samples in general accordance with the Unified Soil Classification System (USCS). 


Engineering and Project Delivery 


The results of our field exploration and laboratory testing will be presented in a 


Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing Report that will include logs of the 


borings, maps indicating the boring locations and a brief description of the soil and 


groundwater conditions encountered. 







Proposal for Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing Services 


Whitney Site A Exploration | Roseau, Minnesota 


February 26, 2024 | Terracon Proposal No. PM5255013 


 


 


  Facilities  |  Environmental  |  Geotechnical  |  Materials 


Exhibit C - Compensation and Project Schedule 


Compensation 


Based upon our understanding of the site, the project as summarized in Exhibit A, and 


our planned Scope of Services outlined in Exhibit B, our base fee is shown in the 


following table:  


Task 
Lump Sum 


Fee
2
 


Subsurface Exploration
1
, Laboratory Testing, Geotechnical Consulting 


and Reporting 
$11,550 


1. The lump sum fee considers one drill rig mobilization and no unexpected onsite 


delays. If additional drill rig mobilizations are required, an additional fee of 


$2,600 would be invoiced. A drill crew standby rate of $300 per hour would be 


invoiced for unexpected delays. 


2. Proposed fees noted above are effective for 90 days from the date of the 


proposal. 


Our Scope of Services does not include services associated with site clearing, wet 


ground conditions, tree or shrub clearing, or repair of/damage to existing landscape or 


crops. If such services are desired by the owner/client, we should be notified so we can 


adjust our Scope of Services. If borings are performed when crops are planted, a crop 


damage agreement should be established between the Client and crop owner prior to 


subsurface exploration. 


Unless instructed otherwise, we will submit our invoice(s) to the address shown at the 


beginning of this proposal. If conditions are encountered that require Scope of Services 


revisions and/or result in higher fees, we will contact you for approval, prior to initiating 


services. A supplemental proposal stating the modified Scope of Services as well as its 


effect on our fee will be prepared. We will not proceed without your authorization. 


Project Schedule 


We developed a schedule to complete the Scope of Services based upon our existing 


availability and understanding of your project schedule. However, our schedule does not 


account for delays in field exploration beyond our control, such as weather conditions, 


delays resulting from utility clearance, permit delays, or lack of permission to access the 


boring locations. In the event the schedule provided is inconsistent with your needs, 


please contact us so we may consider alternatives. 







Proposal for Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing Services 


Whitney Site A Exploration | Roseau, Minnesota 


February 26, 2024 | Terracon Proposal No. PM5255013 


 


 


  Facilities  |  Environmental  |  Geotechnical  |  Materials 


Delivery on Compass Schedule 
1, 2


 


Mobilization of Drill Crew 4 weeks after notice to proceed 


Site Characterization  15 to 20 days after completion of field program 


Subsurface Exploration and 


Laboratory Report 


5 days after completion of laboratory testing 


program 


1. Upon receipt of your notice to proceed we will activate the schedule component 


on Compass with specific, anticipated dates for the delivery points noted above 


as well as other pertinent events. 


2. Standard workdays. We will maintain an activities calendar within Compass. 


The schedule will be updated to maintain a current awareness of our plans for 


delivery. 


 







Proposal for Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing Services 


Whitney Site A Exploration | Roseau, Minnesota 


February 26, 2024 | Terracon Proposal No. PM5255013 


 


 


 


Note to Preparer: This is a large table with outside borders. Just click inside the table 


above this text box, then paste your GIS Toolbox image. 


 


When paragraph markers are turned on you may notice a line of hidden text above 


and outside the table – please leave that alone. Limit editing to inside the table. 


 


The line at the bottom about the general location is a separate table line. You can edit 


it as desired, but try to keep to a single line of text to avoid reformatting the page. 


Exhibit D – Site Location  


  
DIAGRAM IS FOR GENERAL LOCATION ONLY, AND IS NOT INTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES      MAP PROVIDED BY MICROSOFT BING MAPS 







Proposal for Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing Services 


Whitney Site A Exploration | Roseau, Minnesota 


February 26, 2024 | Terracon Proposal No. PM5255013 


 


 


 


Note to Preparer: This is a large table with outside borders. Just click inside the table 


above this text box, then paste your GIS Toolbox image. 


 


When paragraph markers are turned on you may notice a line of hidden text above 


and outside the table – please leave that alone. Limit editing to inside the table. 


 


The line at the bottom about the general location is a separate table line. You can edit 


it as desired, but try to keep to a single line of text to avoid reformatting the page. 


Exhibit E – Anticipated Exploration Plan  


  
DIAGRAM IS FOR GENERAL LOCATION ONLY, AND IS NOT INTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES      MAP PROVIDED BY MICROSOFT BING MAPS 







Proposal for Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing Services 


Whitney Site A Exploration | Roseau, Minnesota 


February 26, 2024 | Terracon Proposal No. PM5255013 


 


 


  Facilities  |  Environmental  |  Geotechnical  |  Materials 


Exhibit F 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Whitney Site A 2 February 2025 


• Repair any disturbed areas due to the drilling operations. Restore the sites to the 
conditions initially encountered.  


 
The proposed subsurface explorations and related tasks are summarized in Table 2.  
 
Table 2: Scope of Work for SPT Explorations 


Item No. Bid Item Unit 
Estimated 
Quantity 


Unit Rate Cost 


1 Mobilization/Demobilization LS 1   


2 
Borings (2 x 20 ft, 6 x 10 ft) 
and sampling 


LF 100   


3 
Backfilling/Grouting of 
Borings 


EA 8   


4 
MDH Sealing/Permit 
Notifications 


EA 1   


5 
3-Inch Undisturbed Tube 
Samples 


EA 4   


    Total  


 


LABORATORY TESTING PROGRAM  


Specific sample testing assignments will be provided by HDR after review of the field boring log 
and samples (if required). The Laboratory Testing Program, which is summarized in Table 3, shall 
be used as a guide for scheduling and budgeting purposes.  Specific sample testing assignments 
will be provided by HDR after review of field boring logs and samples.   
 
Table 3: Scope of Work for Laboratory Testing 


Bid Item Unit 
Estimated 
Quantity 


Unit 
Rate 


Estimated 
Cost 


Moisture Content (ASTM D2216)  EA 40   


Sieve Analyses (ASTM D422) w/ Hydrometer 
(ASTM D1140) 


EA 
2   


Atterberg Limits (ASTM D4318) EA 8   


Consolidation (ASTM: D2435) EA 2   


Unconsolidated-Undrained Triaxial Compression 
(1- point) (ASTM D2850) 


EA 
2   


Density and Unit Weight (ASTM: D7263) EA 6   


Geotechnical Data Report (Includes boring logs 
and laboratory testing results) 


EA 
1   


   Total  


 


 



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$29



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$2,900



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$90



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$90



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$75



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$300



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$2,600



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$2,600



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$120



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$15



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$6,010



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$10



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$115



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$110



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$425



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$230



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$65



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$400



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$230



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$880



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$850



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$460



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$390



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$2,330



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$2,330



Wick, Jessica

Typewriter

$5,540





		Exhibit F - Fee breakdown

		df-Agreement for Services.DocX



				2025-02-27T00:43:29+0000

		Certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign

















 


 


Braun Intertec Corporation 
526 10th Street NE, Suite 300 
P.O. Box 485 
West Fargo, ND 58078 


Phone: 701.232.8701 
Fax:      952.995.2020 
Web:    braunintertec.com 


    AA/EOE 


February 26, 2025 Proposal QTB211162 
 
 
Roseau River Watershed District 
Tracy Halstensgard, Administrator 
714 6th Street Southwest 
Roseau, MN 56751 
 
Re: Proposal for a Geotechnical Exploration and Testing 
 Roseau River Watershed Borings 
 Between Whitney Lake Ditch to 270th Avenue, and 290th Street to 310th Street 
 Moose Township, Minnesota 56714 
 
Dear Ms. Halstensgard: 
 
Braun Intertec Corporation respectfully submits this proposal to complete soil borings at the referenced 
site.  
 


Project Information 
 
Per the RFP provided by Ms. Kerrie Berg with HDR, Inc. and dated February 14, 2025, we understand the 
proposed project will include geotechnical exploration and laboratory testing for the existing 
embankment fill borrow and the outlet structure between Whitney Lake Ditch to 270th Avenue, and 
290th Street to 310th Street.  
 


Purpose 
 
The purpose of our geotechnical exploration and testing will be to characterize subsurface geologic 
conditions at selected locations.  
 


Scope of Services 
 
We propose the following tasks to help achieve the stated purpose. If we encounter unfavorable or 
unforeseen conditions during the completion of our tasks that lead us to recommend an expanded scope 
of services, we will contact you to discuss the conditions before resuming our services. 
 


Site Access 
We request that you contact necessary landowners to notify them of our work and allow access to their land 
as needed prior to our arrival.  
 
Based on aerial photographs, it appears that the site is accessible to a truck-mounted drill rig. We assume 
there will be no cause for delays in accessing the exploration locations. We are not including tree clearing, 
debris or obstruction removal, grading of navigable paths, or snow plowing. If grades are too soft to support 
a truck mounted rig due to spring thaw/melt we can mobilize an all-terrain tire mounted drilling rig for an 
additional fee.  
 







Roseau River Watershed District 
Proposal QTB211162 
February 26, 2025 
Page 2 


 


Depending on access requirements, ground conditions or potential utility conflicts, our field crew may 
alter the exploration locations from those proposed to facilitate accessibility.  
 
Our drilling activities may also impact the vegetation and may rut the surface to access boring locations. 
Restoration of vegetation and turf is not part of our scope of services. 
 


Staking 
We understand HDR, Inc. will be staking the requested boring locations. We request that boring location 
coordinates and elevations are provided to us prior to our arrival on site.  
 


Utility Clearance 
Prior to drilling or excavating, we will contact Gopher State One Call and arrange for notification of the 
appropriate utility vendors to mark and clear the exploration locations of public underground utilities. 
You, or your authorized representative, are responsible to notify us before we begin our work of the 
presence and location of any underground objects or private utilities that are not the responsibility of 
public agencies. 
 
If you, or your authorized representative, cannot locate underground objects or private utilities that are 
suspected or known to exist, we can retain a private locate company for an additional fee. Fees charged 
will include 1.15x the subcontractor fee and additional time from our staff to coordinate the work on 
site. If performed, the property owner must also be available to assist the private locate company in 
determining the presence of any underground objects or the location of utilities. We will not be liable for 
any damages resulting from unidentified or misidentified underground objects or utilities. Further, we 
reserve the right to stop work if underground objects or utilities are suspected or known to exist, but 
locations cannot be accurately determined. 
 


Penetration Test Borings 
As requested, we will drill 8 standard penetration test (SPT) borings for the project. Table 1 provides a 
summary of the proposed boring locations and depths. We will perform standard penetration tests at  
2 1/2-foot vertical intervals to a depth of about 15 feet, and at 5-foot intervals at greater depths. 
 
Table 1. Summary of Requested Borings 


Location Type Quantity Depth (feet) 


Embankment fill & 
borrow areas 


SPT 
2 20 


6 10 


Total 8 100 


 
 
The figure below shows an illustration of the requested boring locations. 
 
  







Roseau River Watershed District 
Proposal QTB211162 
February 26, 2025 
Page 3 


 


Figure 1. Requested Boring Locations 


  
Figure provided by HDR, Inc. dated February 14, 2025.  


 
 
We have also made provisions to obtain 4 thin-walled tube samples of the soils encountered for 
laboratory testing. 
 


Groundwater Measurements 
If the borings encounter groundwater during or immediately after drilling of each boring, we will record 
the observed depth on the boring logs.  
 


Borehole Abandonment 
We will backfill our exploration locations immediately after drilling or after final groundwater 
measurements at each location. We will seal the borings with grout or auger cuttings per Minnesota 
requirements. 
 
Over time, subsidence of borehole backfill may occur, requiring releveling of surface grades. We are not 
assuming responsibility for re-leveling after we complete our fieldwork. 
  







Roseau River Watershed District 
Proposal QTB211162 
February 26, 2025 
Page 4 


 


Sample Review and Laboratory Testing 
We will return recovered samples to our laboratory, where a geotechnical engineer will visually classify 
and log them. Per the RFP, we have budgeted to perform the following laboratory tests. 
 
Table 2. Laboratory Tests 


Test Name ASTM Test Method Quantity 


Moisture content D2216 40 


Moisture content and unit weight D7263 6 


Atterberg limits D4318 8 


Sieve-hydrometer analysis D422 2 


Unconsolidated-undrained triaxial shear strength D2850 2 


Consolidation, one-dimensional D2435 2 


 
 


Report 
We will prepare a factual letter summarizing the soil strata and laboratory test results at each boring 
location including the items listed below. Based on the provided RFP, we have not budgeted to provide 
any recommendations.  
 


▪ A CAD sketch showing the exploration locations. 
 


▪ Logs of the borings describing the materials encountered and presenting the results of our 
groundwater measurements and laboratory tests. 


 


▪ A summary of the subsurface profile and groundwater conditions. 
 


We will only submit an electronic copy of our report to you unless you request otherwise. At your 
request, we can also send the report to additional project team members. 
 


Schedule 
 


We anticipate performing our work according to the following schedule. Dates are based on receiving 
authorization to proceed by March 7, 2025.  
 


▪ Drill rig mobilization – within about 3 to 5 weeks following receipt of written authorization 
 


▪ Field exploration – 2 days on site to complete the work 
 


▪ Classification and laboratory testing – within 1 to 2 weeks after completion of field 
exploration 


 


▪ Summary letter submittal – completed within 1 week following the completion of 
classification and laboratory testing 







Roseau River Watershed District 
Proposal QTB211162 
February 26, 2025 
Page 5 


 


If we cannot complete our proposed scope of services according to this schedule due to circumstances 
beyond our control, we may need to revise this proposal prior to completing the remaining tasks. 
 


Fees 
 
We will furnish the services described in this proposal for a lump sum fee of $18,742, which includes up 
to 1 hour of post deliverable consulting time. Additional requests for meetings, consulting or 
modifications to the report will be billed at a rate of $300 per hour.  
 
Our work may extend over several invoicing periods. As such, we will submit partial progress invoices for 
work we perform during each invoicing period. 
 


Additional Services 
Our fees do not include potential costs due to the need for snow plowing, towing, stand-by time, or work 
that is not included in the above Scope of Services. We will charge costs for snow plowing or towing  
(if necessary) at a rate of 1.15 times the actual cost. For stand-by time (defined as time spent by our field 
crew due to circumstances that are beyond the control of our field crew or its equipment, or beyond the 
scope of services indicated above), we will charge a rate of $400 per hour.  
 


General Remarks 
 
We will be happy to meet with you to discuss our proposed scope of services further and clarify the 
various scope components. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal to you. Please sign and return a copy to us in its 
entirety. 
 
We based the proposed fee on the scope of services described and the assumptions that you will 
authorize our services within 30 days and that others will not delay us beyond our proposed schedule. 
 







Roseau River Watershed District 
Proposal QTB211162 
February 26, 2025 
Page 6 


 


We include the Braun Intertec General Conditions, which provide additional terms and are a part of our 
agreement. 
 
To have questions answered or schedule a time to meet and discuss our approach to this project further, 
please contact Kathleen Dragos at 701.446.6403. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
BRAUN INTERTEC CORPORATION 
 
 
 
Kathleen Dragos 
Staff Engineer 
 
 
 
Ezra Ballinger, PE 
Director, Principal Engineer 
 
Attachments: 
MDH Permit Sheet 
General Conditions (11/04/2024) 
 
c: Kerrie Berg with HDR, Inc. 
  
The proposal is accepted, and you are authorized to proceed. 
 
 


Authorizer’s Firm 
 
 


Authorizer’s Signature 
 
 


Authorizer’s Name (please print or type) 
 
 


Authorizer’s Title 
 
 


Date  
 
 







 


 


Braun Intertec Corporation 
526 10th Street NE, Suite 300 
P.O. Box 485 
West Fargo, ND 58078 


Phone: 701.232.8701 
Fax:      701.232.7817 
Web:    braunintertec.com 


AA/EOE 


February 26, 2025 Proposal QTB211162 
 
 
Roseau River Watershed District 
Tracy Halstensgard, Administrator 
714 6th Street Southwest 
Roseau, Minnesota 56751 
 
Re: Proposal for a Geotechnical Factual Letter 
 Roseau River Watershed Borings 
 Between Whitney Lake Ditch to 270th Avenue, and 290th Street to 310th Street 
 Moose Township, Minnesota 56714 
 
Dear Ms. Halstensgard: 
 
Please have the property owner, representative or agent complete the “Well Owner” section only of 
the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH) Well Sealing Notification form below and return it to 
Braun Intertec along with the signed proposal. We will complete the remainder of the form and submit 
it to the MDH. 
 
NOTE: This form must be completed and returned to Braun Intertec prior to us scheduling the 
mobilization of our equipment and crews to the project site. 
 
 







 
Braun Intertec General Conditions 


 


Rev. 2024-11-04                            Page 1 of 2  


SECTION 1: AGREEMENT 


1.1 Agreement. This agreement consists of these General Conditions and the accompanying 
written proposal or authorization (“Agreement”). This Agreement  is the entire agreement 
between Consultant  and Client  and  supersedes  all prior negotiations,  representations or 
agreements, either written or oral. 


1.2 Parties to the Agreement. The parties to this Agreement are the Braun Intertec entity 
(“Consultant”) and the client (“Client”) as described in the accompanying written proposal 
or  authorization.  Consultant  and  Client  may  be  individually  referred  to  as  a  Party  or 
collectively as the Parties.   


SECTION 2: SCOPE OF SERVICES 


2.1  Services. Consultant will provide  services  (“Services”)  in  connection with  the project 
(“Project”) which are specifically described in this Agreement. Client understands and agrees 
that  Consultant’s  Services  are  limited  to  those  which  are  expressly  set  forth  in  this 
Agreement.  


2.2 Additional Services. Any Services not specifically set forth  in the Agreement constitute 
“Additional Services.” Additional Services must be agreed upon in writing by the Parties prior 
to  performance  of  the  Additional  Services  and  may  entitle  Consultant  to  additional 
compensation  and  schedule  adjustments.  Additional  compensation  will  be  based  upon 
Consultant’s then current rates and fees.  


SECTION 3: PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES 


3.1 Standard of Care. Consultant will perform  its professional Services consistent with the 
degree of care and skill exercised by members of Consultant’s profession performing under 
similar circumstances at the same time and  in the same  locality  in which the professional 
Services  are  performed.    CONSULTANT  DISCLAIMS  ALL  STATUTORY,  ORAL,  WRITTEN, 
EXPRESS,  AND  IMPLIED  WARRANTIES,  INCLUDING  WARRANTIES  OF  MERCHANTABILITY, 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES  IN A GOOD AND 
WORKMANLIKE MANNER.  


3.2 Written Reports and Findings. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, Consultant’s findings, 
opinions, and recommendations will be provided to Client in writing and may be delivered 
via  electronic  format.  Client  agrees  not  to  rely  on  oral  findings,  opinions,  or 
recommendations. 


3.3 Observation or Sampling Locations. Locations of field observations or sampling described 
in  Consultant’s  report  or  shown  on  Consultant’s  sketches  reference  Project  plans  or 
information provided by others or estimates made by Consultant’s personnel. Consultant will 
not survey, set, or check the accuracy of those points unless Consultant accepts that duty in 
writing. Client agrees that such dimensions, depths, or elevations are approximations unless 
specifically stated otherwise in the report. Client accepts the inherent risk that samples or 
observations may not be representative of items not sampled or seen and further that site 
conditions may vary over distance or change over time. 


3.4  Project  Site  Information.  Client  will  provide  Consultant  with  prior  environmental, 
geotechnical and other reports, specifications, plans, and  information to which Client has 
access  about  the  Project  site  and  which  are  necessary  for  Consultant  to  carry  out 
Consultant’s Services. Client agrees to provide Consultant with all plans, changes  in plans, 
and new information as to Project site conditions until Consultant has completed its Services. 


3.5 Subsurface Objects. To  the extent  required  to  carry out Consultant’s Services, Client 
agrees to provide Consultant, in a timely manner, with information that Client has regarding 
buried objects  at  the Project  site. Consultant will not be  responsible  for  locating buried 
objects or utilities at the Project site unless expressly set forth in this Agreement, or expressly 
required by applicable law. Client agrees to hold Consultant harmless, defend, and indemnify 
Consultant from claims, damages,  losses, penalties and expenses (including attorney fees) 
involving buried objects or utilities that were not properly marked or identified or of which 
Client had or should have had knowledge but did not timely notify Consultant or correctly 
identify on the plans Client or others furnished to Consultant. Consultant, from time to time, 
may  hire  a  third  party  to  locate  underground  objects  or  utilities  and,  unless  otherwise 
expressly stated  in this Agreement, such action shall be for the sole benefit of Consultant 
and in no way will alleviate Client of its responsibilities hereunder.  


3.6 Hazardous Materials. Client will notify Consultant of any knowledge or suspicion of the 
presence of hazardous or dangerous materials present on any Project site or in any sample 
or material provided to Consultant. Client agrees to provide Consultant with information in 
Client’s possession or control relating to such samples or materials. If Consultant observes 
or suspects the presence of contaminants not anticipated in this Agreement, Consultant may 
terminate  Services  without  liability  to  Client  or  to  others,  and  Client  will  compensate 
Consultant for fees earned and expenses incurred up to the time of termination. 


3.7 Supervision of Others. Consultant shall have no obligation to supervise or direct Client’s 
representatives,  contractors, or other  third parties  retained by Client. Consultant has no 
authority  over  or  responsibility  for  the  means,  methods,  techniques,  sequences,  or 
procedures of construction selected or used by Client, Client’s representatives, contractors, 
or other third parties retained by Client.  


3.8 Safety. Consultant will provide a health and safety program for its employees as well as 
reasonable  personal  protective  equipment  (“PPE”)  typical  for  the  performance  of  the 
Services provided by this Agreement and as required by law. Consultant shall be entitled to 
compensation for all extraordinary PPE required by Client. Client will provide, at no cost to 


Consultant, appropriate Project site safety measures which are necessary for Consultant to 
perform  its Services at  the Project  location or work areas  in connection with  the Project. 
Consultant’s  employees  are  expressly  authorized  by  Client  to  refuse  to  work  under 
conditions that may, in an employee’s sole discretion, be unsafe. Consultant shall have no 
authority over or be responsible for the safety precautions and programs, or for security, at 
the  Project  site  (except  with  respect  to  Consultant’s  own  Services  and  those  of  its 
subconsultants). 


3.9 Project Site Access and Damage. Client will provide or ensure access to the site. In the 
performance  of  Services  some  Project  site  damage  is  normal  even  when  due  care  is 
exercised. Consultant will use reasonable care to minimize damage to the Project site. Unless 
otherwise expressly stated in this Agreement, the cost of restoration for such damage has 
not been included in the estimated fees and will be the responsibility of the Client. 


3.10 Monitoring Wells. To the extent applicable to the Services, monitoring wells are Client’s 
property,  and  Client  is  responsible  for  monitoring  well  permitting,  maintenance,  and 
abandonment unless otherwise expressly set forth in this Agreement. 


3.11 Contaminant Disclosures Required by Law. Client agrees to make all disclosures related 
to the discovery or release of contaminants that are required by law. In the event Client does 
not own the Project site, Client acknowledges that it is Client’s duty to inform the owner of 
the Project site of the discovery or release of contaminants at the site. Client agrees to hold 
Consultant harmless, defend, and indemnify Consultant from claims, damages, penalties, or 
losses  and  expenses,  including  attorney  fees,  related  to  Client’s  failure  to  make  any 
disclosure required by law or for failing to make the necessary disclosure to the owner of the 
Project site. 


SECTION 4: SCHEDULE 


4.1 Schedule. Consultant shall complete  its obligations within a reasonable time and shall 
make decisions and carry out its responsibilities in a manner consistent with the Standard of 
Care. Specific periods of time for rendering Services or specific dates by which Services are 
to be completed are provided in this Agreement. If Consultant is delayed in the performance 
of  the  Services  by  actions,  inactions,  or  neglect  of  Client  or  others  for whom  Client  is 
responsible, by changes ordered in the Services, or by other causes beyond the control of 
Consultant, including force majeure events, then the time for Consultant’s performance of 
Services shall be extended and Consultant shall receive payment for all expenses attributable 
to the delay in accordance with Consultant’s then current rates and fees. 


4.2 Scheduling On‐Site Observations or Services. To the extent Consultant’s Services require 
observations, inspections, or testing be performed at the Project site, Client understands and 
agrees that Client, directly or indirectly through its authorized representative, has the sole 
right  and  responsibility  to  determine  and  communicate  to  Consultant  the  scheduling  of 
observations,  inspections,  and  testing  performed  by  Consultant.  Accordingly,  Client  also 
acknowledges that Consultant bears no responsibility for damages that may result because 
Consultant did not perform such observations,  inspections, or testing that Client  failed to 
request and schedule.  Client understands that the scheduling of observations, inspections, 
or testing will dictate the time Consultant’s field personnel spend on the job site and agrees 
to  pay  for  all  services  provided  by  Consultant  due  to  Client’s  scheduling  demands  in 
accordance with Consultant’s then current rates and fees.   


SECTION 5: COST AND PAYMENT OF SERVICES 


5.1 Cost Estimates. Consultant’s price or fees provided for in this Agreement are an estimate 
and are not a fixed amount unless otherwise expressly stated in this Agreement. Consultant’s 
estimated  fees  are  based  upon  Consultant’s  experience,  knowledge,  and  professional 
judgment as well as information available to Consultant at the time of this Agreement. Actual 
costs may vary and are not guaranteed or warrantied.  


5.2 Payment. Consultant will invoice Client on a monthly basis for Services performed.  Client 
will pay for Services as stated in this Agreement together with costs for Additional Services 
or costs otherwise agreed to  in writing within thirty (30) days of the  invoice date.   Unless 
otherwise stated in this Agreement or agreed to in writing, Consultant’s costs for all services 
performed  will  be  based  upon  Consultant’s  then  current  rates,  fees,  and  charges.  No 
retainage shall be withheld by Client. All unpaid invoices will incur an interest charge of 1.5% 
per month or the maximum allowed by law.  


5.3 Other Payment Conditions. Consultant will require Client credit approval and Consultant 
may  require payment of a  retainer  fee. Client agrees  to pay all applicable  taxes. Client’s 
obligation to pay for Services under this Agreement  is not contingent on Client’s ability to 
obtain financing, governmental or regulatory agency approval, permits, final adjudication of 
any lawsuit, Client’s successful completion of any project, receipt of payment from a third 
party, or any other event. 


5.4 Third Party Payment.   Provided Consultant has agreed  in writing, Client may  request 
Consultant  to  invoice  and  receive  payment  from  a  third  party  for Consultant’s  Services. 
Consultant,  in  its  sole  discretion,  may  also  require  the  third  party  to  provide  written 
acceptance of all terms of this Agreement. Neither payment to Consultant by a third party 
nor a third party’s written acceptance of all terms of this Agreement will alter Client’s rights 
and  responsibilities  under  this  Agreement.    Client  expressly  agrees  that  the  Agreement 
contains sufficient consideration notwithstanding Consultant being paid by a third party. 


5.5 Non‐Payment. If Client does not pay for Services in full as agreed, Consultant may retain 
work not yet delivered to Client and Client agrees to return all Project Data (as defined in this 
Agreement) that may be in Client’s possession or under Client’s control. If Client fails to pay 
Consultant  in  accordance with  this  Agreement,  such  nonpayment  shall  be  considered  a 







 
Braun Intertec General Conditions 


 


Rev. 2024-11-04                            Page 2 of 2  


default  and  breach  of  this  Agreement  for  which  Consultant  may  terminate  for  cause 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement and without liability to Client or to others. Client 
will  compensate  Consultant  for  fees  earned  and  expenses  incurred  up  to  the  time  of 
termination. Client agrees to be  liable to Consultant for all costs and expenses Consultant 
incurs  in  the  collection  of  amounts  invoiced  but  not  paid,  including  but  not  limited  to 
attorney fees and costs. 


SECTION 6: OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DATA 


6.1 Ownership. All reports, notes, calculations, documents, and all other data prepared by 
Consultant  in  the  performance  of  the  Services  (“Project  Data”)  are  instruments  of 
Consultant’s Services and are the property of Consultant. Consultant shall retain all common 
law, statutory and other reserved rights, including the copyright thereto, of Project Data.  


6.2 Use of Project Data. The Project Data of  this Agreement  is  for  the exclusive purpose 
disclosed by Client and, unless agreed to in writing, for the exclusive use of Client.  Client may 
not use Project Data for a purpose for which the Project Data was not prepared without the 
express written consent of Consultant. Consultant will not be  responsible  for any claims, 
damages,  or  costs  arising  from  the  unauthorized  use  of  any  Project  Data  provided  by 
Consultant under  this Agreement. Client agrees  to hold harmless, defend and  indemnify 
Consultant from any and all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorney fees, 
arising out of such unauthorized use. 


6.3 Samples, Field Data, and Contaminated Equipment. Samples and  field data remaining 
after  tests  are  conducted,  as  well  as  field  and  laboratory  equipment  that  cannot  be 
adequately cleansed of contaminants, are and continue to be the property of Client. Samples 
may be discarded or returned to Client, at Consultant’s discretion, unless within fifteen (15) 
days of  the  report date Client gives Consultant written direction  to  store or  transfer  the 
samples and materials. Samples and materials will be stored at Client’s expense. 


6.4  Data  Provided  by  Client.  Electronic  data,  reports,  photographs,  samples,  and  other 
materials provided by Client or others may be discarded or returned to Client, at Consultant’s 
discretion, unless within 15 days of the report date Client gives Consultant written direction 
to store or transfer the materials at Client’s expense. 


SECTION 7: INSURANCE 


7.1 Insurance. Consultant shall keep and maintain the following insurance coverages: 


a. Workers’ Compensation: Statutory 


b. Employer’s Liability: $1,000,000 bodily injury, each accident | $1,000,000 bodily injury 
by disease, each employee | $1,000,000 bodily injury/disease, aggregate 


c. General Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence | $2,000,000 aggregate 


d. Automobile  Liability:  $1,000,000  combined  single  limit  (bodily  injury  and  property 
damage)  


e. Excess Umbrella Liability: $5,000,000 per occurrence | $5,000,000 aggregate 


f. Professional Liability: $2,000,000 per claim | $2,000,000 aggregate 


7.2 Waiver of Subrogation. Client and Consultant waive all claims and rights of subrogation 
for losses arising out of causes of loss covered by the respective insurance policies.  


7.3 Certificate of  Insurance. Consultant shall  furnish Client with a certificate of  insurance 
upon request.  


SECTION 8: INDEMNIFICATION, CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, LIABILITY LIMITS 


8.1 Indemnification. Consultant’s only indemnification obligation shall be to indemnify and 
hold  harmless  the  Client,  its  officers,  directors,  and  employees  from  and  against  those 
damages and costs incurred by Client or that Client is legally obligated to pay as a result of 
third party  tort  claims,  including  for  the death or bodily  injury  to  any person or  for  the 
destruction or damage to any property, but only to the extent proven to be directly caused 
by the negligent act, error, or omission of the Consultant or anyone for whom the Consultant 
is  legally responsible. This  indemnification provision  is subject to the Limitation of Liability 
set forth in this Section 8. 


8.2  Intellectual  Property. Client  agrees  to  indemnify Consultant  against  losses  and  costs 
arising out of claims of patent or copyright infringement as to any process or system that is 
specified or selected by Client or others on behalf of Client. 


8.3 Mutual Waiver  of  Consequential  Damages.  NOTWITHSTANDING  ANYTHING  TO  THE 
CONTRARY  HEREUNDER,  NEITHER  CONSULTANT  NOR  CLIENT  SHALL  BE  LIABLE  TO  THE 
OTHER FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL OR SPECIAL DAMAGES, 
OR LOSS OF USE OR RENTAL, LOSS OF PROFIT, LOSS OF BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY, LOSS OF 
PROFIT OR  REVENUE OR  COST OF  FINANCING, OR OTHER  SUCH  SIMILAR AND  RELATED 
DAMAGE ASSERTED  IN THIRD PARTY CLAIMS, OR CLAIMS BY EITHER PARTY AGAINST THE 
OTHER. 


8.4 Limitation of Liability. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE TOTAL LIABILITY 
IN THE AGGREGATE OF CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’S OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, PARTNERS, 
EMPLOYEES,  AGENTS,  AND  SUBCONSULTANTS,  TO  CLIENT  AND  ANYONE  CLAIMING  BY, 
THROUGH OR UNDER CLIENT FOR ANY CLAIMS, LOSSES, COSTS, OR DAMAGES WHATSOEVER 
ARISING  OUT  OF,  RESULTING  FROM  OR  IN  ANY  WAY  RELATED  CONSULTANT’S 
PERFORMANCE OF  THE  SERVICES OR  THIS AGREEMENT,  FROM ANY CAUSE OR CAUSES, 
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO NEGLIGENCE, PROFESSIONAL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS, 


STRICT LIABILITY, BREACH OF CONTRACT, INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS OR BREACH OF 
WARRANTY, SHALL NOT EXCEED THE TOTAL COMPENSATION RECEIVED BY CONSULTANT OR 
$50,000, WHICHEVER IS GREATER. 


SECTION 9: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 


9.1  Services  Prior  to  Agreement.  Directing  Consultant  to  commence  Services  prior  to 
execution of this Agreement constitutes Client’s acceptance of this unaltered Agreement in 
its entirety.  


9.2  Confidentiality.  To  the  extent  Consultant  receives  Client  information  identified  as 
confidential, Consultant will not disclose  that  information  to  third parties without Client 
consent. Additionally, any Project Data prepared in performance of the Services will remain 
confidential and Consultant will not release the reports to any third parties not involved in 
the Project. Neither of the aforesaid confidentiality obligations shall apply to any information 
in the public domain, information lawfully acquired from others on a nonconfidential basis, 
or information that Consultant is required by law to disclose. 


9.3 Relationship of the Parties. Consultant will perform Services under this Agreement as an 
independent contractor, and its employees will at all times be under its sole discretion and 
control. No provision  in  this Agreement  shall be deemed or  construed  to  create  a  joint 
venture, partnership, agency or other such association between the Parties.  


9.4  Resource  Conservation  and  Recovery  Act.  To  the  extent  applicable  to  the  Services, 
neither  this Agreement nor  the providing of Services will operate  to make Consultant an 
owner,  operator,  generator,  transporter,  treater,  storer,  or  a  disposal  facility within  the 
meaning of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, or within the meaning 
of  any  other  law  governing  the  handling,  treatment,  storage,  or  disposal  of  hazardous 
substances. Client agrees  to hold Consultant harmless, defend, and  indemnify Consultant 
from any claims, damages, penalties or losses resulting from the storage, removal, hauling 
or disposal of such substances. 


9.5 Services in Connection with Legal Proceedings. Client agrees to compensate Consultant 
in accordance with its then current fees, rates, or charges if Consultant is asked or required 
to respond to legal process arising out of a proceeding related to the Project and as to which 
Consultant is not a party. 


9.6 Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by Consultant or Client without the 
prior written consent of the other Party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 


9.7 Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended, or 
will be construed, to confer upon or give any person or entity other than Consultant and 
Client,  and  their  respective  permitted  successors  and  assigns,  any  rights,  remedies,  or 
obligations under or by reason of this Agreement. 


9.8 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either Party for cause upon seven 
(7) days written notice to the other Party. Should the other Party fail to cure and perform in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement within such seven‐day period, the Agreement 
may terminate at the sole discretion of the Party that provided the written notice. The Client 
may terminate this Agreement for its convenience. If Client terminates for its convenience, 
then Consultant  shall be  compensated  in accordance with  the  terms hereof  for Services 
performed,  reimbursable  costs  and  expenses  incurred  prior  to  the  termination,  and 
reasonable costs incurred as a result of the termination. 


9.9 Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be  liable for damages or deemed  in default of this 
Agreement  to the extent that any delay or failure in the performance of its obligations (other 
than the payment of money) results, without its fault or negligence, from any cause beyond 
its  reasonable  control,  including  but  not  limited  to  acts  of God,  acts  of  civil  or military 
authority,  embargoes,  pandemics,  epidemics, war,  riots,  insurrections,  fires,  explosions, 
earthquakes,  floods,  adverse weather  conditions,  strikes  or  lock‐outs,  declared  states  of 
emergency, and changes in laws, statutes, regulations, or ordinances. 


9.10 Disputes, Choice of Law, Venue. In the event of a dispute and prior to exercising rights 
at law or under this Agreement, Consultant and Client agree to negotiate all disputes in good 
faith for a period of 30 days from the date of notice of such dispute. This Agreement will be 
governed by  the  laws and  regulations of  the state  in which  the Project  is  located and all 
disputes and claims shall be heard  in the state or federal courts for that state. Client and 
Consultant each waive trial by jury.  


9.11  Individual Liability. No officer or employee of Consultant, acting within  the scope of 
employment, shall have individual liability for any acts or omissions, and Client agrees not to 
make a claim against any individual officers or employees of Consultant. 


9.12  Severability.  Should  a  court  of  law  determine  that  any  clause  or  section  of  this 
Agreement is invalid, all other clauses or sections shall remain in effect. 


9.13 Waiver. The failure of either Party hereto to exercise or enforce any right under this 
Agreement  shall  not  constitute  a  release  or  waiver  of  the  subsequent  exercise  or 
enforcement of such right. 


9.14  Entire  Agreement.  The  terms  and  conditions  set  forth  herein  constitute  the  entire 
understanding of the Parties relating to the provision of Services by Consultant to Client. This 
Agreement may be amended only by a written  instrument signed by both Parties.  In  the 
event  Client  issues  a  purchase  order  or  other  documentation  to  authorize  Consultant’s 
Services, any conflicting or additional terms of such documentation are expressly excluded 
from this Agreement.  







     

RRWMB Meeting Highlights – February 2025 

Meeting Highlights – February 11, 2025 

 
 

1. Funding Commitments: Information was presented regarding current funding commitments of 
the RRWMB for flood mitigation/water storage projects and water quality projects that are in 
various phases along with annually funded programs and one-time allocations. Current 
commitments include the following: 

• Flood Mitigation/Water Storage:      $17,525,573.08  
• Water Quality Program: Base Funding     $     750,422.73 
• Water Quality Program: Competitive Funding     $     800,954.57 
• Annually Funded Programs/One-time Allocations:   $     652,557.96 

TOTAL Remaining Funding Commitments:                         $19,729,508.34 
 
Below is an illustration of current RRWMB funding commitments as of February 2025. Annual 
operating expenses are not included in funding commitments.  
 
 

 
 
 

 



 
2. Technical Committee Recommendations (TAC): The RRWMB Managers approved 

recommendations from the TAC regarding the following flood mitigation/water storage projects.  
• Nelson Slough Improvement Project: The Step 3 Submittal was approved and a final 

funding agreement between the RRWMB and Middle-Snake-Tamarac Rivers Watershed 
District will be forthcoming. 
 

• Klondike Clean Water Retention Project: The Revised Step 2 Submittal from the Two 
Rivers Watershed District (TRWD) was approved, with the RRWMB Managers approving an 
additional financial commitment of $6,850,000.00 for the Project. An updated funding 
agreement will be forthcoming between the RRWMB and TRWD. 

 
3. TRWD Funding Request – Horseshoe Lake Project: The RRWMB Managers approved 

accepting the application of the TRWD of $112,365.00 for the Project, which was built in 1968 
and modified in 2005 using partial RRWMB funding. The Project will involve replacement of the 
outlet structure. The Project was referred on to the TAC for technical review and below is 
information about funding partners. 
 

Funding Partner Amount Percent 
Minnesota Department of 
Natural Resources 

 
$220,000.00 

 
46.59 

Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) 

 
$82,000.00 

 
17.36 

RRWMB $112,365.00 23.79 
TRWD $57,885.00 12.26 
Total $472,250.00 100.00 

 
4. Rural Flood Mapping (RFM) Project: A grant agreement of $1 million was approved with 

Minnesota Homeland Security and Emergency Management (HSEM) for RFM, with the funds 
being pass-through from FEMA to Minnesota HSEM. The RRWMB will be moving forward with 
a contract and scope of services with the team comprised of the International Water Institute 
and Houston Engineering Incorporated to commence work on the Project. Two Procurement 
Procedures for Technical Services were also approved by the Managers – one for compliance 
with federal standards when federal funding is used, and the other for instances when non-
federal funds are used.   
 

5. Next meeting: The RRWMB will hold its next meeting on Tuesday, March 18, 2025 at the 
Marriott Hotel and Convention Center at 10:00 a.m. located at 1080 28Th Avenue South, 
Moorhead, Minnesota, 56560. The joint annual conference of the RRWMB and Flood Damage 
Reduction Work Group will convene at the Marriott on March 18, 2025 at 1:00 p.m.  

 
Day two of the event will commence at 8:30 a.m. Several radio shows will be broadcast live 
from the event over the two-day conference including R&J Broadcasting FM106.5, Farm Talk 
Radio AM890, Red River Farm Network, and KFGO News and Views AM790. More information 
about the day and a half event can be found at the following link: 
https://www.rrwmb.us/event-list 
 

https://www.rrwmb.us/event-list


Photo 1 - Southwest Outlet structure.

Photo 2 - Looking east down the southern
embankment dam.

Photo 3 - Southeast control structure.

Photo 4 - Southeast control structure.

2024 MNDNR DAM SAFETY INSPECTION REPORT
Norland 36, Roseau County - MN01565

Dana Dostert PE. PG - February 10, 2025

Engineers from MNDNR Dam Safety inspected the Norland 36 Flood Water Impoundment Dams on October
15 and 16, 2024. Such inspections are conducted on a regular basis as required by Minnesota Rules.  Class III
(Low Hazard) Dams, such as Norland 36 Impoundment, are normally inspected every eight years.

Dam Safety found the Norland 36 Impoundment to
be well maintained and in good condition.  Concrete
was in very good condition and gates were mostly
open but not checked for operability. Vegetation was
well managed. No Dam Safety issues were noted.

Dam Safety will reinspect the Norland 36
Impoundment Dams in 2032.



Photo 5 - West central control structure.

Photo 7 - Northwest Control Structure.

Photo 6 - West central control structure.

Photo 10 - Northwest stilling basin.Photo 9 - Northwest stilling basin inlet.

Photo 8 - Northwest conduit outlet.



Photo 11 - Northeast inlet structure:
Looking downstream at the stilling basin
and outlet control structure to the west. 
The two conduits shown are the
downstream end of the impoundment
inlet.  

Photo 12 - Closer view of the outlet gates
and stilling basin at the northeast inlet
structure.  

Photo 13 - Northeast inlet structure:
Lateral gate connecting to the southern
ditch.



RRWD Maintenance Contractors 2025 

 

Duxby Levee 

Maintenance needed: Mowing 

Contractor: Leon Mitsatko  

Equipment: 7’ mower 

Rate: $80/hr. 

 

Norland Impoundment 

Maintenance needed: Mowing/Haying 

Contractor: Pete Kvien or Jeff Erickson  

Equipment: Unknown 

Rate: Unknown 

 

WD115 

Maintenance needed: Mowing 

Contractor: Unknown  

Equipment: Unknown 

Rate: Unknown 

 

CD16 

Maintenance needed: Mowing 

Contractor: Jason Braaten  

Equipment: Unknown 

Rate: Unknown 

 

 

Hay Creek Setback Levees 

Maintenance needed: Haying 

Contractor: Jeff Erickson/Nick Robertson  

Equipment: Unknown 

Rate: None - Haying 

 

Palmville 

Maintenance needed: Mowing 

Contractor: Unknown 

Equipment: Unknown 

Rate: Unknown 

 

West Interceptor 

Maintenance needed: Haying 

Contractor: Nick Robertson  

Equipment: Unknown 

Rate: None - Haying 

 



RESOLUTION CLOSING BOARD MEETING 
 

 WHEREAS, the Minnesota Open Meeting Law, Minn. Stat. § 13D.05, subd. 

3(b) states that “meetings may be closed if the closure is expressly authorized by 

statute or permitted by the attorney-client privilege;” and 

 

 WHEREAS, the RRWD seeks to meet with its attorney, to discuss the 

potential litigation; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it would be detrimental to the interests of the Board of 

Managers of the RRWD to hold a public discussion with its attorney regarding the 

strengths and weaknesses of its legal position(s), strategy, and potential settlement 

position where an opposing party or opposing attorney could listen to or be made 

aware of the RRWD’s positions; and 

 

 WHEREAS, there is an absolute need for the RRWD Board of Managers to 

obtain confidential legal advice regarding the pending litigation and potential 

settlement in order to maintain the attorney-client privilege. 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Managers of the Roseau River 

Watershed District as follows: 

 

1. The Roseau River Watershed District Board of Managers hereby 

closes this meeting based upon the attorney-client privilege pursuant 

to Minn. Stat. § 13D.05, subd. 3(b); 

 

2. The specific subjects to be discussed, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 

13D.01, subd. 3, are the legal strategy in responding to potential 

litigation against the RRWD.  

 

Dated this 6th day of March, 2025. 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Chairman 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Secretary 


	agenda March 2025.pdf
	Feb 6, 2025 minutes_draft.pdf
	Feb 2025 Bills & Receipts.pdf
	March 2025 Treasurer's Report.pdf
	permits.pdf
	Roseau Lake Rehab Project Construction Services Task Order #4.pdf
	Project Understanding and Scope of Services
	Proposed Action Description
	Proposed Project Team
	Scope of Services
	1.0 Project Management & Coordination
	2.0 Construction Services and Inspections
	2.1 Document Pre-Construction Site Conditions
	Conduct a pre-construction site surface condition visual assessment of existing features reasonably expected to be impacted by either indirect construction operations or direct construction of design features/elements and provide photo documentation o...
	2.2 Shop Drawings and RFI Administration
	2.3 Construction Inspection
	2.4 Substantial Completion, Final Completion, and Project Close-out
	3.1 Survey
	3.2 Preparation of As-Built Plans
	Schedule
	Cost Estimate
	NOTICE TO PROCEED


	Site A Soil Borings Quotes.pdf
	RRWMB Meeting Highlights - February 11 2025.pdf
	IR_MN01565_2024_Norland 36.pdf
	RRWD Contractors and Maintenance 2025.pdf
	Closed meeting resolution - litigation

